p Consolidated Balance Sheets

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
As of March 31,
2011 2012 2012
(ASSETS)
Cash and depOosSits «««+x«+xrrerererinrii e ¥ 257,204 ¥ 315,187 $3,834
Call loans--«+-ssssereereea 244,700 249,200 3,031
Monetary claims bought 291,115 294,324 3,581
Money held in trust:------ 62,838 48,266 587
Securities:---eeeeeee 25,597,752 27,038,793 328,979
Loans: - eoeerersnnnnnns 3,627,991 3,413,620 41,533
Tangible fixed assets - 1,296,105 1,254,685 15,265
Land -«e-eeeeenennnens 843,018 809,048 9,843
Buildings:----- 445,572 430,318 5,235
Leased assets -----eeeeeeeees 1,474 1,681 20
Construction in PrOQIESS s urerrnrrssssresrtnsstiist s 2,219 9,747 118
Other tangible fixed assets: -« -+ e 3,821 3,889 47
Intangible fixed assets 104,173 211,055 2,567
SOFEWAIE +++rervreneerneerserrseesseaasessestessessesseesseesseesseannessesanesaneereennenanens 70,646 71,036 864 -
GOOTWIIl +rvrermremrenmeenseerseesseeasessesresresusesseesseesseesseesneenesanesneeneennennnens - 63,654 774 =
Other intangible fixed assets--- 33,5627 76,364 929 =
ReINSUrancCe reCeiVabIE <+ rerrrrrrrerrriirir e 45,764 41,751 507 ch
Other aSSets -«+-rereereereterrattrtciererctettirettrteteenirierstereresresesenssnssassasaaraass 288‘336 307!973 3,747 5
Deferred tax assets 477,206 284,562 3,462 r—
Customers' liabilities for acceptances and guarantees «««-««--«-erseesennns 17,826 20,074 244 cr/|_>|
Reserve for possible 10an 10SSES:++««+ s rrrrrimmmiiiiiie ('1 2‘928) (1 0,684) (1 29) cji
Reserve for possible investment [0SSes -+« v rvermeminiinie (223) (142) 1) o
TOtal @SSELS «+ovrevveesrrrrrsr 32,297,862 33,468,670 407,210 c%
(LIABILITIES)
Policy reserves and Others -« . e 29,641,967 30,489,920 370,968
Reserves for outstanding Claims «««-«--sesemmemnn 198,841 239,320 2,911
Po|icy FESEIVES ++rerressssntustarterttratmettiisiiaiiastasnersereimitiisiiamessassstasresmeres 29,039,453 29,862,729 363,337
Reserve for policyholder dividends - 403,671 387,871 4,719
Reinsurance payable::««ooeeeenneen 1,278 12,681 154
Subordinated bonds--- 149,129 148,652 1,808
Other liabilities -+ xxeoersrersesiiin 1,126,459 1,188,105 14,455
Reserve for employees' retirement benefits- 420,067 433,791 5,277
Reserve for retirement benefits of directors,
executive officers and corporate auditors: -« - v, 3,168 2,538 30
Reserve for possible reimbursement of prescribed claims - 1,100 1,000 12
Reserves under the special [aws - «coreereieiniininin, 80,596 74,831 910
Reserve for price fluctuations:-- 80,596 74,831 910
Deferred tax liabilities «««---««eeerrsmeeeninnnns 798 9,719 118
Deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation -- 123,635 95,608 1,163
Acceptances and guarantees .................................................................. 17’826 20,074 244
Total iabilities «+-xeeeereerreri 31,566,027 32,476,924 395,144
(NET ASSETS)
Capital SLOCK «+ererseseserseenteistei e 210,200 210,200 2,557
Cap|ta| Surp]us ........................................................................................ 210,200 210,200 2,557
Retained earnings 149,007 165,557 2,014
Treasury STOCK +evmrerer et (20‘479) (1 6,703) (203)
Total shareholders' equity ....................................................................... 548,928 569,253 6,926
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax - 238,886 483,446 5,882
Deferred hedge gains (I0SSES) --«-«-xxserreereersnnniiiiiis 1,243 (44) (0)
Reserve for land revaluation -« e (65,194) (61,616) (749)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (3,765) (8,535) (103)
Total accumulated other comprehensive INCOME: -+« uxruermnsiniiniinnns 171,169 413,249 5,027
Subscription r|ghts tO Shares «++sreerersemitniitiaiiiiiiiiins _ 150 1
Minority TNTEIESTS - +errrrer et 11,737 9,091 110
Total Net asSets ««+-vvrrrrrrrrii 731,835 991,745 12,066
Total liabilities and net assets ¥ 32,297,862 ¥ 33,468,670 $ 407,210
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p Consolidated Statements of Earnings

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Year ended March 31,
2011 2012 2012

ORDINARY REVENUES: - +++essreestesseessersseessressesssesssesasesseessesesssessseessesssens ¥ 4,571,556 ¥ 4,931,781 $ 60,004

Premium and other income - . 3,312,456 3,539,579 43,065

INVESTMENT INCOMIE -+xrrrrmmreeeee e 922,787 1,035,662 12,600

INterest aNd JiVIAENAS -««-re-sreereerreererrrereeirerireriresareasreseesseesseesseene 698,753 698,627 8,500

Gains on investments in trading securities - - 822 10

Gains on sale of SECUNLIES xrwrrerrrrrmmmiii 212,360 259,619 3,158

Gains on redemption of SECUItIES «+x«errrermremmninis 1,533 686 8

Derivative transaction gains 9,233 - -

Reversal of reserve for possible 10an 10SSes «+-««++rreereerininniiiinnnens - 2,174 26

Other iINVeStMENt INCOME «+-+rrrrerrrrmmirirrir e 906 2,582 31

Gains on investments in separate accounts .- - 71,149 865

Other ordinary reVeNUES -« ««+«+xrrrrrrtrininii e 336,313 356,539 4,337

ORDINARY EXPENSES «+++-vtereeeesstenniiiniii i 4,490,356 4,705,860 57,255

Benefits and claims - .- 2,711,314 2,688,419 32,709

- (02 41T TR SORROE 765,792 784,632 9,546
= Annuities 517,331 541,770 6,591
= Benefits - 514,565 498,299 6,062
= SUIMTENAEY VAIUEBS «++rrerrrrrrrareartariiriitirtirrn s saraaes 659,025 630,846 7,675
g Other refunds «----oseeemmmmmm 254,599 232,871 2,833
— Provision for policy reserves and others .- 466,486 718,673 8,744
wn Provision for reserves for outstanding claims -« oo, 48,531 - -
8 Provision for poliCy reServes ««« -« e 408,071 709,161 8,628
— Provision for interest on policyholder dividends - - 9,882 9,512 115
% Investment EXPENSES ++reerrsrerssastrrsttastttit i 444,681 380,31 5 4,627
7) INterest EXPENSES -+« rrrrrrrrrerririii 13,074 20,034 243
Losses on money held in trust - 5,718 14,342 174

Losses on investments in trading securities 1,955 - -

Losses on sale of SECUNtIeS «++++-rveeremmmmmimii 120,960 180,717 2,198

Losses on valuation of securities - - 179,622 44,713 544

Losses on redemption of securities - 4,168 3,355 40

Derivative transaction losses:------ - - 36,543 444

Foreign exchange 10S8es: -« - uwvermiiiisiniiiinns - 28,122 29,084 353

Provision for reserve for possible investment losses - 17 0

Write-down Of [0aNs «+++-seeerrmsmmemmniiiiii i 410 58 0

Depreciation of rented real estate and others - 15,207 15,078 183

Other investment eXpenses: -««« - «twwreerneenns 35,320 36,370 442

Losses on investments in separate accounts - - 40,119 - -

Operating EXPENSES ++-nrrrrerrssnrrrsssssnrrrassannneaas - 434,859 471,061 5,731

Other ordinary EXPENSES «+-««++ssrerrrrrristiristiiitisi s 433,015 447,390 5,443

OFAINANY PIOFit «+esereresersesesssstsesiirtiersits s 81,199 225,920 2,748
EXTRAORDINARY GAINS -vteureererrerarearereerseesseeaseessesnsessesanesanesseesseesees 40,023 30,477 370

Gains on disposal Of fiXed ASSELS «rrerrererrermirriririiiri 3,350 1,595 19

Reversal of reserve for possible 10an [0SSes ---+--«--xrrrremesennniniininns 1,052 - -

Reversal of reserve for possible investment losses - 498 - -

Gains on collection of loans and claims written off.««« - veeeevniinninnns 189 - -

Reversal of reserve for price fluctuations -« -« -eroemrmmninninniinns 34,932 5,765 70

Gain on step acquisition - 23,116 281

Other extraordinary gains .................................................................... 1 0 0

EXTRAORDINARY LOSSES :--:--::x+- 11,526 36,348 442

Losses on disposal of fixed assets - 4,113 2,631 32

Impairment losses on fixed assets 3,338 33,602 408

Effect of initial application of accounting standard

for asset retirement Obligations ....................................................... 4,074 - -

Other extraordinary |OSSES +vrererernrarernitirrii i 0 114 1

Provision for reserve for policyholder dividends --«--««-sereermssnnsinninnnns 78,500 69,000 839

Income before income taxes and minority interests - 31,196 151,048 1,837

Corporate income taxes-current --- 26,514 29,597 360

Corporate income taxes-deferred-- - (14,380) 104,024 1,265

Total of Corporate TNCOME tAXES +++rerrrerrrnrarnrertiniiiiarir s 12,133 1 33,621 1 ,625

Income before minority INterests « -« v 19,063 17,427 212
Minority interests in gain (loss) of subsidiaries-- - (75) (2,930) (35)

Net income for the WBAN +++rrmmrr e ¥ 19,1 39 ¥ 20,357 $ 247
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p Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Year ended March 31,
2011 2012 2012
Income before minority interests «ros e ¥ 19,063 ¥17,427 $ 212
Other comprehensive income
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax «-««-«eweereenennns (223,366) 244,910 2,979
Deferred hedge gains (|osses) ............................................................. 3,251 (1 ,287) (1 5)
Reserve for land revaluation - -« - s - 16,861 205
Foreign currency translation adjustments -« e 815) (4,207) (51)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and
affiliates accounted for under the equity method:---««  eveeereniennnns 102 (604) (7)
Total other comprehensive INCOME «+««rerererenininiiiis (220,826) 255,673 3,110
COMPIENENSIVE INCOME:++++rvsssressssrssssisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssss s ssssssssssns (201,763) 273,100 3,322
(Details)
Attributable to shareholders of the parent company:«-«---«-seeseereenaes (201,708) 275,722 3,354
Attributable to minority INTErEStS «revrrerrrrrrrrra i (54) (2,622) (31)

SNOILJ3S VIONVNIH
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p Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Year ended March 31,
2011 2012 2012

Shareholders’ equity
Capital stock
Balance at the beginning of the year -« oo ¥ 210,200 ¥ 210,200 $ 2,557
Changes for the year
Total changes for the year

Balance at the end of the YA wreeureersres sttt 210,200 21 0,200 2’557
Capital surplus
Balance at the beginning of the year -+« e 210,200 210,200 2,557
Changes for the year
Disposa| of treasury SEOCK +rererrrrrerrrtrrr i - (1 ,31 5) (1 5)
Transfer from retained earnings to capital SUrplus -« - sereremeeninennns - 1,315 15
Total Changes fOr the YEar -« et - - -
- Balance at the end of the year -+ e 210,200 210,200 2,557
= Retained earnings
jZ> Balance at the beginning of the year -« e 138,318 149,007 1,812
g Changes for the year
— (DAY e [ a o =TT OSSOSO (10,000) (15,776) (191)
F{-,J Net income for the year -+« -« o ereeminii e 19,139 20,357 247
C_|) Transfer from retained earnings to capital SUrplus -«««««-ssseeeseeminniennes - (1,315) (15)
(@) Transfer from reserve for land revaluation -« . oo 1,653 13,284 161
& OIS ceveessseseesssssssesessssssssseessssssssssesssssssssssesssssssesssssssssesssessssssssnsessoes (103) 0 0
Total Changes for the YA +evressrrssnre st 10,689 16,549 201
Balance at the end of the YBAN ++enrrrres s 149,007 165,557 2’01 4
Treasury stock
Balance at the beginning of the YA wresrerrsstrnsttist s - (20,479) (249)
Changes for the year
Purchase of treasury stock- (20,479) - -
Disposal of treasury StOCK ««««+-«rerreemnmmimiiiis - 3,775 45
Total changes for the year -« e (20,479) 3,775 45
Balance at the end of the year (20,479) (16,703) (203)
Total shareholders’ equity
Balance at the beginning of the year -« oo 558,718 548,928 6,678
Changes for the year
DIIVIGENOS -+ ++veveerrrerereseensernrerureseesueeaseaaseesseesseeasesnesanesanesneesneennessesseans (10,000) (15,776) (191)
Net iNCOME fOr thE YEAK -++-+s+eeresreserrmrisciiisiisiei s 19,139 20,357 247
Purchase of treasury StOCK s resreemimitntitani e (20,479) - -
Disposa| of treasury STOCK rvrrerrrmrrm - 2,459 29
Transfer from retained earnings to capital Surplus «««-««eseeeseeeeenennns - - -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation «« -« e, 1,653 13,284 161
OtNErS sorerrerrererrarrrtarir s (1 03) 0 0
Total changes for the year -- - (9,790) 20,325 247
Balance at the end of the year -+ e 548,928 569,253 6,926
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax
Balance at the beginning of the year -« oo 462,289 238,886 2,906
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity:--««+---ceroeeerneeeens (223,403) 244,560 2,975
Total Changes fOr the YEar -+« --wrsrrerrerreuriisiiinsisici s (223,403) 244,560 2,975
Balance at the end Of the YEar --«----rwsrrueerirmirieiniiicrii s ¥ 238,886 ¥ 483,446 $ 5,882
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(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Year ended March 31,

2011 2012 2012

Deferred hedge gains (losses)

Balance at the beginning of the year -+« oo ¥ (2,008) ¥1,243 $15
Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity:-««+--seeroeeerneneees 3,251 (1,287) (15)
Total changes for the year 3,251 (1,287) (15)
Balance at the end of the YA +eessersern et 1,243 (44) (0)

Reserve for land revaluation
Balance at the beginning of the year -+« e (63,540) (65,194) (793)

Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity:-««+--esrseerneeeens (1,653) 3,577 43
Total changes for the YA +errersrtr sttt (1 ,653) 3,577 43
Balance at the end of the year -+ oo (65,194) (61,616) (749)

Foreign currency translation adjustments -
Balance at the beginning of the year -« e (3,069) (3,765) (45) =
Changes for the year jZ>

Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity---- (696) (4,769) (58) cj—:
Total changes for the year -+« -« e (696) (4,769) (58) —
Balance at the end of the year -+« - oo (3,765) (8,535) (103) cr{-),

Total accumulated other comprehensive income 2
Balance at the beginning of the year -« e 393,671 171,169 2,082 o
Changes for the year c%

Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity-«---«--«--eeseereeas (222,501) 242,080 2,945

Total changes for the YA +eerrssrtraantts st (222,501) 242,080 2,945

Balance at the end of the YN ++enrrrre s s 171,169 41 3,249 5’027
Subscription rights to shares

Balance at the beginning of the Y@K -rrrrer s - - -

Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity -«+«-«eeeseeerieinnnens - 150 1
Total changes for the year - 150 1

Balance at the end of the year- -+ e - 150 1

Minority interests

Balance at the beginning of the year -« - o 11,804 11,737 142

Changes for the year
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity ««««-««sserseemseeniennees (66) (2,646) (32)

Total Changes fOr the YEar -+« (66) (2,646) (32

Balance at the end of the YBAN - weenres st 11,737 9,091 110

Total net assets

Balance at the beginning of the year - v, 964,193 731,835 8,904

Changes for the year
DIVIAENAS -+erreerrremrermmereermesmeaeearessseesseeaseesseseesenesseesneessesssesseennseneesneesnes (10,000) (15,776) (191)

Net income for the year: -+ e 19,139 20,357 247
Purchase of treasury StOCK «-«+-wererrmrrmmsii (20,479) - -
Disposal of treasury StOCK:«---+-sxxersrrrrmrmii - 2,459 29
Transfer from retained earnings to capital Surplus:««--««--s-seeeesennninninnns - - -
Transfer from reserve for land revaluation -« - e 1,653 13,284 161
OLNEIS+ -+ +eesseerneerseesseraseaaseeaseausesueesaeeaseeaseebe e st ee e e s e easeeaeeseeesaeeane e sesbenneeas (103) 0 0
Net changes of items other than shareholders’ equity «--«---+---seseeseenenenes (222,568) 239,584 2,915
Total Changes fOr the YEar -+« -« wrrrrrurririreiriisiiris e (232,358) 259,909 3,162
Balance at the end of the year ¥ 731,835 ¥ 991,745 $ 12,066
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p Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Year ended March 31,
2011 2012 2012
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income taxes and minority interests -- - ¥ 31,196 ¥ 151,048 $1,837
Depreciation of rented real estate and others - . 15,207 15,078 183
Depreciation -+« - seereemeeniiiiiis - 33,774 38,555 469
Impairment losses on fixed assets 3,338 33,602 408
AMOIHZAtION OF GOOUWIll-+++s+rsersrsesreisesiisisissriseistt e _ 3,352 40
Increase (decrease) in reserves for outstanding claims . 48,531 (45,804) (557)
Increase (decrease) in policy reserves: .« -«.-uwueeee 408,071 706,755 8,599
Provision for interest on policyholder dividends ---- 9,882 9,512 115

Provision for (reversal of) reserve for policyholder dividends: -« - searererrinineniininns 78,500 69,000 839

Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible loan losses -+ (8,182) (2,244) (27)
Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible investment losses -- (900) (80) (0)
Gains on collection of loans and claims written off . (189) - -
Write-down Of |0aNs -+« +--sremrrrmmrmmmrrre e . 410 58 0
Increase (decrease) in reserve for employees' retirement benefits -« ereereneniininns 8,629 13,725 166
Increase (decrease) in reserve for retirement benefits of directors,
executive officers and corporate auditors -+« -rererrmnn s (167) (628) (7)
s Increase (decrease) in reserve for possible reimbursement of prescribed claims . (100) (1)
= Increase (decrease) in allowance for policyholder dividends -«--««-«---eererresinniinnnns (92,500) - -
= Transfer from allowance for policyholder dividends to reserve
% fOF PONICYNOIAET QIVIAENGS +++++srerrerressssssrreesessssssesensssessssssseessssssssssseesssssssssseee 92,500 _ _
= Increase (decrease) in reserve for price fluctuations-- . (34,932) (5,765) (70)
— INEErESt ANA QIVIGENAS +++verererremrersrmirenreiiestest st ste st b st st e ss e e s sn e sn e ebe e (698,753) (698,627) (8,500)
wn Securities related losses (gains) - 132,933 (103,492) (1,259)
g Interest expenses «««-«xxreereennens . 13,074 20,034 243
— Foreign exchange losses (gains) -+ . 28,122 29,084 353
o Losses (gains) on disposal of fixed assets 763 1,036 12
= Equity in losses (income) of affiliates-- (4,355) (2,065) (25)
w Loss (gain) on step acquisitions -« - (23,116) (281)
Decrease (increase) in reinsurance receivable «« - e 64 5,858 7
Decrease (increase) in other assets unrelated to investing and flnancmg actlvmes ..... (5,688) 5,773 70
Increase (decrease) in reiNSUrance Payable -« « « et 406 602 7
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities unrelated to investing and financing activities .. (2,150) 3,046 37
Others, [0 T T T T T 41 ,408 84’71 2 1 ’030
Subtotal 98,996 308,914 3,758
Interest and dividends received - 723,309 744,172 9,054
Interest paid:««-««eeeesrenennins . (9,091) (18,599) (226)
Policyholder dividends paid -- . (106,426) (94,311) (1,147)
Others, net e 78,482 (174,455) (2,122)
Corporate income taxes paid-- . (3,732) (35,650) (433)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) operating activities -+« 781,539 730,069 8,882
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Monetary Claims DOUGHt -« -« s eeseeseerrurmansesisnisiistaseisssess s (11,851) (30,900) (375)
Proceeds from sale and redempt|on of monetary claims bought - . 16,502 36,014 438
Purchases of money held in trust: -« oo . (12,900) (9,100) (110)
Proceeds from decrease in money held in trust-- . - 9,300 113
Purchases of securities -+« - (10,021,629) (9,839,307) (119,714)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of securities-- 9,035,758 9,131,880 111,106
Origination of loans -+ (389,518) (419,187) (5,100)
Proceeds from collection of loans 587,373 633,334 7,705
Others, net . 48,715 (33,626) (409)
Total of net cash provided by (used in) investment transactions ««--«-«-xeveeeeniennnnnens (747,550) (521,592) (6,346)
Total of net cash provided by (used in) operating activities and
investment transactions 33,988 208,476 2,536
Acquisition of tangible fixed assets.... (80,181) (25,817) (314)
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 6,829 4,792 58
Acquisition of intangible fixed assets::-:-:--- (21,165) (21,652) (263)
Proceeds from sale of intangible fixed assets-- 0 0 0
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries resulting in change
iN SCOPE O CONSONTALION «++rsrerseererseessessrsreseemsssesseseessessstsss st - (86,217) (1,048)
Payments for execution of assets retirement obligations . (151) (343) 4)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities -« ereeeriniiins (842,218) (650,831) (7,918)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from borrowing 55,597 - -
Repayment of borrowings - (5,004) (2,377) (28)
Proceeds from issuing bonds::- 106,314 - -
Repayment of financial lease obligations (252) (474) (5)
Purchase of treasury stock:-««------ereeees (20,479) - -
Proceeds from disposal of treasury stock- - 2,456 29
Cash dividends paid (9,881) (15,693) (190)
OBNEIS, NET:wsseereresrsressesstsie sttt (12) (24) (0)
Net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities----- . 126,282 (16,113) (196)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents - (1,006) (642) (7)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ---- 64,596 62,482 760
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year - . 437,308 501,904 6,106
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year -+ ¥ 501,904 ¥ 564,387 $ 6,866
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
>
AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2012

1. Basis for Presentation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared from the accounts maintained by The Dai-
ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited (“DL”) and its consolidated subsidiaries in accordance with the provisions set
forth in the Financial Instruments and Exchange Act, and in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in Japan (“Japanese GAAP”) which are different in certain respects from the application and disclosure requirements
of International Financial Reporting Standards.

Certain items presented in the consolidated financial statements are reclassified for the convenience of readers
outside Japan. The notes to the consolidated financial statements include information which is not required under
Japanese GAAP but is presented herein as additional information.

The amounts indicated in millions of yen are rounded down by truncating the figures below one million. Totals may
not add up exactly because of such truncation. Amounts in U.S. dollars are included solely for the convenience of
readers outside Japan. The rate of ¥82.19=US$1.00, the foreign exchange rate on March 31, 2012, has been used
for translation of the truncated figures in Japanese yen. The inclusion of such amounts is not intended to imply that
Japanese yen has been or could be readily converted, realized or settled into U.S. dollars at that rate or any other
rate.

2. Principles of Consolidation
(1) Scope of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of DL and its consolidated subsidiaries (collectively,
“the Group”), including The Dai-ichi Life Information Systems Co., Ltd., Dai-ichi Frontier Life Insurance Co., Ltd.
(“DFLI”), Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company of Vietnam, Limited and TAL Dai-ichi Life Australia Pty Ltd (“TDLA”).
The number of consolidated subsidiaries as of March 31, 2012 was sixteen. Effective the fiscal year ended March
31, 2012, Tower Australia Group Limited (“Tower”), formerly an affiliated company under the equity method,
and its twelve group companies were newly included in the scope of consolidation of DL as DL completed the
acquisition of 100% ownership of Tower on May 11, 2011. Tower changed its name to TAL Limited on June 1,
2011. Two subsidiaries of TDLA are excluded from the scope of consolidation as TDLA disposed of its interest in
the companies in March, 2012.

The main subsidiaries that are not consolidated for the purposes of financial reporting are Dai-ichi Seimei
Sogo Service K.K., Dai-ichi Seimei Human Net K.K., and Dai-ichi Seimei Business Service K.K. The twelve non-
consolidated subsidiaries had, individually and in the aggregate, a minimal impact on the consolidated financial
statements in terms of total assets, sales, net income, retained earnings, cash flows, and others.

There was no non-consolidated subsidiary accounted for under the equity method as of March 31, 2012.

The number of affiliated companies under the equity method as of March 31, 2012 was 14. The affiliated
companies included DIAM Co., Ltd., Mizuho-DL Financial Technology Co., Ltd., Japan Real Estate Asset
Management Co., Ltd., Trust & Custody Services Bank Ltd., Corporate-pension Business Service Co., Ltd., Japan
Excellent Asset Management Co., Ltd., NEOSTELLA CAPITAL CO., LTD., Ocean Life Insurance Co., Ltd., and Star
Union Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company Limited. Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, Tower (currently
TAL Limited) and its twelve group companies were excluded from the scope of the equity method accounting of
DL and became consolidated subsidiaries of DL as DL completed its acquisition of 100% ownership of Tower on
May 11, 2011.

The non-consolidated subsidiaries (Dai-ichi Seimei Sogo Service K.K., Dai-ichi Seimei Human Net K.K., and Dai-
ichi Seimei Business Service K.K. and others), as well as affiliated companies (DSC No.3 Investment Partnership,
CVC No.1 Investment Limited Partnership, CVC No.2 Investment Limited Partnership, NEOSTELLA No.1
Investment Limited Partnership, O.M. Building Management Co., Ltd., and others) were not accounted for under
the equity method. These companies had, individually and in the aggregate, a minimal impact on the consolidated
financial statements, in terms of the net income (loss), retained earnings and others.

The summary of special purpose entities is described in 37. Specified Purpose Companies.

(2) Year-end Dates of Consolidated Subsidiaries
The closing date of domestic consolidated subsidiaries is March 31, whereas that of consolidated overseas
subsidiaries is December 31 or March 31. Financial information as of those closing dates is used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements, although the necessary adjustments are made when significant transactions
take place between the account closing date of an individual subsidiary and that of the consolidated financial
statements.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(1) Valuation Methods of Securities
Securities held by DL and its consolidated subsidiaries including cash equivalents, bank deposits, and monetary
claims bought which are equivalent to marketable securities, and marketable securities managed as trust assets in
money held in trust, are carried as explained below:
The amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts is calculated by the straight-line method.
a) Trading Securities
Trading securities are carried at fair value with cost determined by the moving average method.

SNOILI3S VIONVNIH

The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited




b) Held-to-maturity Securities
Held-to-maturity debt securities are stated at amortized cost determined by the moving average method.

c) Policy-reserve-matching Bonds (in accordance with the Industry Audit Committee Report No.21 “Temporary
Treatment of Accounting and Auditing Concerning Policy-reserve-matching Bonds in the Insurance Industry”
issued by the Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (JICPA))

Policy-reserve-matching bonds are stated at amortized cost determined by the moving average method.

d) Stocks of Non-consolidated Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies Not Accounted for under the Equity Method
Stocks of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies not accounted for under the equity method
are stated at cost determined by the moving average method.

€) Available-for-sale Securities
i) Available-for-sale Securities with Market Value

Available-for-sale securities which have market value are valued at fair value at the end of the year (for

domestic stocks, the average fair value during March), with cost determined by the moving average method.

However, for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, a certain domestic stock with market value was valued
at fair value as of March 31, 2011, due to some factors including the significant differences between its

average fair value during March 2011 and its fair value as of March 31, 2011.

ii) Available-for-sale Securities Whose Market Values Are Extremely Difficult to Recognize
a. Government/Corporate Bonds (including Foreign Bonds), Whose Premium or Discount Represents the
Interest Adjustment
Government/corporate bonds (including foreign bonds), whose premium or discount represents the interest
adjustment are valued at the amortized cost determined by the moving average method.
b. Others
All others are valued at cost determined by the moving average method.
Net unrealized gains or losses on these available-for-sale securities are presented as a separate component
of net assets and not in the consolidated statements of earnings.
(2) Valuation Method of Derivative Transactions
Derivative transactions are reported at fair value.
(3) Depreciation of Depreciable Assets
a) Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets Excluding Leased Assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets excluding leased assets is calculated by the following method:
i) Buildings (excluding attached improvements and structures)
a. Acquired on or before March 31, 2007
Calculated by the previous straight-line method.

b. Acquired on or after April 1, 2007
Calculated by the straight-line method.

i) Assets Other than Buildings

a. Acquired on or before March 31, 2007
Calculated by the previous declining balance method.

b. Acquired on or after April 1, 2007
Calculated by the declining balance method.
Estimated useful lives of major assets are as follows:
Buildings 2 to 60 years
Other tangible fixed assets 2 to 20 years

Tangible fixed assets other than land and buildings that were acquired for ¥100,000 or more but less than
¥200,000 are depreciated at equal amounts over three years.

With respect to tangible fixed assets that are acquired on or before March 31, 2007 and that are depreciated
to their final depreciable limit, effective the year ended March 31, 2008, the remaining values are depreciated
at equal amounts over five years following the year end when such assets were depreciated to their final
depreciable limit.

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets owned by consolidated subsidiaries in Japan is principally calculated
by the declining balance method, while the straight-line method is principally used to compute depreciation for
such assets of consolidated overseas subsidiaries.

b) Amortization of Intangible Fixed Assets Excluding Leased Assets
DL and its consolidated subsidiaries use the straight-line method for amortization of intangible fixed assets
excluding leased assets. Amortization of software for internal use is based on the estimated useful lives of 4 to 8
years.

c) Depreciation of Leased Assets
Depreciation of leased assets with regard to finance leases whose ownership does not transfer to the lessees is
computed under the straight-line method assuming zero salvage value. Finance leases, which commenced on
or before March 31, 2008, are accounted for in the same manner applicable to ordinary operating leases.
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(4) Reserve for Possible Loan Losses
The reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the internal rules for self-assessment, write-offs, and
reserves on assets.

For loans to and claims on obligors that have already experienced bankruptcy, reorganization, or other formal
legal failure (hereafter, “bankrupt obligors”) and loans to and claims on obligors that have suffered substantial
business failure (hereafter, “substantially bankrupt obligors”), the reserve is calculated by deducting the estimated
recoverable amount of the collateral or guarantees from the book value of the loans and claims after the direct
write-off described below.

For loans and claims on obligors that have not yet suffered business failure but are considered highly likely to
fail (hereafter, “obligors at risk of bankruptcy”), the reserve is calculated, taking into account (1) the recoverable
amount covered by the collateral or guarantees and (2) an overall assessment of the obligor’s ability to pay.

For other loans and claims, the reserve is calculated by multiplying the actual rate or other appropriate rate of
losses from bad debts during a certain period in the past by the amount of the loans and claims.

For all loans and claims, the relevant department in DL performs an asset quality assessment based on the
internal rules for self-assessment, and an independent audit department audits the result of the assessment. The
above reserves are established based on the result of this assessment.

For loans and claims to bankrupt and substantially bankrupt obligors, the unrecoverable amount is calculated
by deducting the amount deemed recoverable from collateral and guarantees from the amount of the loans and
claims and is directly written off from the amount of the loans and claims. The amounts written off during the years
ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were ¥3,832 million and ¥119 million (US$1 million), respectively.

(5) Reserve for Possible Investment Losses
In order to provide for future investment losses, a reserve for possible investment losses of DL is established for
securities whose market values are extremely difficult to recognize. It is calculated based on the internal rules for
self-assessment, write-offs, and reserves on assets.

(6) Reserve for Employees’ Retirement Benefits
For the reserve for employees’ retirement benefits, the amount calculated in accordance with the accounting
standards for retirement benefits (“Statement on Establishing Accounting Standards for Retirement Benefits”
issued on June 16, 1998 by the Business Accounting Council) is provided, based on the projected benefit
obligations and pension assets as of March 31, 2012.

Gains (losses) on plan amendments are amortized under the straight-line method through a certain period (3
years for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 and 3 or 7 years for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011) within
the employees’ average remaining service period.

Actuarial differences are amortized under the straight-line method through a certain period (3 or 7 years) within
the employees’ average remaining service period, starting from the following year.

Certain consolidated subsidiaries applied the simplified method in calculating their projected benefit obligations.

(7) Reserve for Retirement Benefits of Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Auditors
For the reserve for retirement benefits of directors, executive officers and corporate auditors of DL, (1) an
estimated amount for future payment out of the total amount of benefits for past service approved by the 105th
general meeting of representative policyholders of DL and (2) an estimated amount for future corporate-pension
payments to directors, executive officers, and corporate auditors who retired before the 105th general meeting of
representative policyholders of DL are provided.

For the reserve for retirement benefits of directors, executive officers, and corporate auditors of certain
consolidated subsidiaries, an amount considered to have been rationally incurred is provided.

(8) Reserve for Possible Reimbursement of Prescribed Claims
To prepare for the reimbursement of claims for which prescription periods had expired, DL provided for reserve for
possible reimbursement of prescribed claims an estimated amount based on past reimbursement experience.

(9) Reserve for Price Fluctuations
A reserve for price fluctuations is calculated based on the book value of stocks and other securities at the end of
the year in accordance with the provisions of Article 115 of the Insurance Business Act.

(10) Translation of Assets and Liabilities Denominated in Foreign Currencies into Yen

DL translated foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities (excluding stocks of its non-consolidated
subsidiaries and affiliated companies which are not accounted for under the equity method) into yen at the
prevailing exchange rates at the end of the year. Stocks of non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies
not accounted for under the equity method are translated into yen at the exchange rates on the dates of
acquisition.

Assets, liabilities, revenues, and expenses of DL’s consolidated overseas subsidiaries are translated to yen
at the exchange rates at the end of their fiscal year. Translation adjustments associated with the consolidated
overseas subsidiaries are included in foreign currency translation adjustments in the net assets section of the
consolidated balance sheets.

For certain consolidated subsidiaries of DL, changes in fair value of bonds included in foreign currency-
denominated available-for-sale securities related to foreign currency-denominated insurance contracts are divided
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into two: changes in fair value due to changes in market prices in their original currencies are accounted for as

“net unrealized gains (losses) on securities”, and the remaining changes are reported in “foreign exchange gains

(losses)”.

(11) Methods for Hedge Accounting

a) Methods for Hedge Accounting
Hedging transactions are accounted for in accordance with the “Accounting Standards for Financial
Instruments” (Accounting Standards Board of Japan (ASBJ) Statement No.10 issued on March 10, 2008).
Primarily, (1) special hedge accounting for interest rate swaps and the deferral hedge method are used for
cash flow hedges of certain loans, government and corporate bonds, and loans payable and bonds payable;
(2) foreign currency swaps, the currency allotment method by foreign currency forward contracts and deferral
hedge method, are used for cash flow hedges against exchange rate fluctuations in certain foreign currency-
denominated loans, loans payable, bonds payable, term deposits and stocks (forecasted transaction); and (3)
the fair value hedge method by currency options and foreign currency forward contracts is used for hedges
against exchange rate fluctuations in the value of certain foreign currency-denominated bonds.

b) Hedging Instruments and Hedged Items
Years Ended March 31, 2011 and 2012

Hedging instruments Hedged items
Interest rate SWapS -««-«orrerrrsmmnn e Loans, government and corporate bonds, loans payable,
bonds payable
Foreign currency swaps: -« -sseeemmmmnnnis Foreign currency-denominated loans, foreign currency-

denominated loans payable, foreign currency-denominated
bonds payable

Foreign currency forward contracts:«««---+sseerseennincnns Foreign currency-denominated bonds, foreign currency-
denominated term deposits, foreign currency-denominated
stocks (forecasted transaction)

CUurrency options «««-eweseremenns Foreign currency-denominated bonds
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c) Hedging Policies
DL conducts hedging transactions with regard to certain market risk and foreign currency risk of underlying
assets to be hedged, in accordance with the internal investment policy and procedure guidelines.
d) Assessment of Hedge Effectiveness
Hedge effectiveness is assessed primarily by a comparison of fluctuations in cash flows or fair value of hedged
items to those of hedging instruments.
(12) Amortization of Goodwill
Goodwill is amortized over a period up to 20 years under the straight-line method. The entire amount is expensed
as incurred if the amount is immaterial.
(18) Scope of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statements of cash flows consist of the following items contained
in the consolidated balance sheets: cash and deposits, call loans, commercial paper included in monetary claims
bought, money market funds included in securities, and overdrafts included in other liabilities.
(14) Calculation of National and Local Consumption Tax
DL and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries account for national and local consumption tax by the tax-exclusion
method. Deferred consumption tax included in non-recoverable consumption tax on certain assets is capitalized
as other assets and amortized equally over five years in accordance with the Enforcement Ordinance of the
Corporation Tax Law, and such taxes other than deferred consumption tax are recognized as an expense when
incurred.
(15) Policy Reserves
Policy reserves of DL and its consolidated subsidiaries that operate a life insurance business in Japan are
established in accordance with Article 116 of the Insurance Business Act. Insurance premium reserves are
calculated as follows:
i) Reserves for policies subject to the standard policy reserve rules are calculated based on the methods
stipulated by the Commissioner of Financial Services Agency (Notification of the Minister of Finance No. 48,
1996).
ii) Reserves for other policies are established based on the net level premium method.
Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, for whole life insurance contracts acquired by DL on or before
March 31, 1996 for which premium payments were already completed (including lump-sum payments),
additional policy reserves are provided in accordance with Article 69, Paragraph 5 of the Enforcement
Regulation of the Insurance Business Act and will be provided over nine years. As a result, the amount of the
provisions for policy reserves for the year ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were ¥112,631 million and ¥105,958
million (US$1,289 million), respectively.
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Asset Group Place Number Impairment Losses

(16) Application of “Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections”
The Group applied “Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error Corrections” (ASBJ Statement
No.24 issued on December 4, 2009) and “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Accounting Changes and Error
Corrections” (ASBJ Guidance No.24 issued on December 4, 2009) for making accounting changes and correcting
past errors on or after April 1, 2011.
(17) Revision of “Practical Guidelines on Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments”
The Group formerly presented (1) reversal of reserve for possible loan losses and (2) gains on collection of loans
and claims written off as items under extraordinary gains. However, effective the fiscal year ended March 31,
2012, DL started to present the reversal of reserve for possible loan losses under investment income and gains on
collection of loans and claims written off as a component of other investment income, due to the revision made
to “Practical Guidelines on Accounting Standards for Financial Instruments” (Accounting Practice Committee
Statement No. 14 issued by JICPA).
(18) Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets
Details of impairment losses on fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows:
a) Method of Grouping Assets
Real estate and other assets used for insurance business purposes are recognized as one asset group. Each
property for rent and property not in use, which is not used for insurance business purposes, is deemed to be
an independent asset group.
b) Background for Recognition of Impairment Losses
As a result of significant declines in profitability or market value of some asset groups, DL wrote down the book
value of these assets to the recoverable value, and reported such write-off as impairment losses in extraordinary
losses.
c) Breakdown of Impairment Losses
Impairment losses by asset group for the year ended March 31, 2011 were as follows:
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Land Buildings Total

Real estate  Iwaki City, Fukushima

(millions of yen)

for rent Prefecture and others 4 ¥ 132 ¥ 169 ¥ 302
Real estate  Himeji City, Hyogo

not in use Prefecture and others 64 2,082 953 3,036
Total 68 ¥2,215 ¥1,123 ¥ 3,338

Impairment losses by asset group for the year ended March 31, 2012 were as follows:

Asset Group Place Number Impairment Losses
Land Buildings Total Land Buildings Total
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)

Real estate  Tomakomai City, Hokkaido
for rent and others 5 ¥ 378 ¥ 467 ¥ 845 $ 4 $ 5 $ 10
Real estate Ashigara-kami County,
not in Use Kanagawa Prefecture and

others 92 28,929 3,605 32,534 351 43 395
Total 97 ¥ 29,307 ¥4,072  ¥33,379 $ 356 $ 49 $ 406

d) Calculation of Recoverable Value
Value in use or net sale value is used as the recoverable value of real estate for rent, and net sale value is used
as the recoverable value of real estate not in use. Discount rates of 2.89% and 2.81% for the years ended March
31,2011 and 2012, respectively, were applied for discounting future cash flows in the calculation of value in use.
Estimated disposal value, appraisal value based on real estate appraisal standards, or appraisal value based on
publicly assessed land value for tax purposes is used as the net sale value.
(19) Securities Borrowing
Securities borrowed under borrowing agreements can be sold or pledged as collateral. As of March 31, 2011, the
market value of the securities borrowed which were not sold or pledged as collateral was ¥1,301 million. As of
March 31, 2012, the Group held no securities borrowed which were not sold or pledged as collateral.
(20) Policy Acquisition Costs
The costs of acquiring and renewing business, which include agent commissions and certain other costs directly
related to the acquisition of business, are expensed when incurred as the Insurance Business Act in Japan does
not permit insurance companies to defer and amortize these costs.
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4. Assets Pledged as Collateral / Secured Liabilities
The amounts of securities and cash/deposits pledged as collateral were as follows:

As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Securities (Government bONdS) «+-«---+-eeerersmrriii ¥ 445,706 ¥ 432,624 $ 5,263
Securities (FOreign SECUNties) -+« rrerrsemiiii 7,347 3,294 40
Securities (Corporate DONAS)-««--«--xxeermrsmiinii s - 526 6
CaASH/AEPOSIES:++++erreeesrereresetresseisi it 86 86 1
Securities and cash/deposits pledged as collateral -«-«-----eoveveeeae ¥ 453,140 ¥ 436,532 $ 5,311

The amounts of secured liabilities were as follows:
As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Cash collateral for securities lending transactions -««-««-«xseeseanennees ¥ 439,443 ¥ 405,816 $ 4,937
Loans payable --- 10 8 0
SECUIEd [ADIlIEIES --++-rersrrerreerrerreerrmereemeessersseesseesseensesresnesnesssesseenans ¥ 439,454 ¥ 405,824 $ 4,937

“Securities (Government bonds)” pledged as collateral for securities lending transactions with cash collateral as of
March 31, 2011 and 2012 were ¥436,425 million and ¥394,756 million (US$4,802 million), respectively.

5. Securities Lending
Securities lent under lending agreements are included in the consolidated balance sheets. The total balance of
securities lent as of March 31, 2011 and 2012 was ¥482,741 million and ¥490,077 million (US$5,962 million),
respectively.
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6. Policy-reserve-matching Bonds
a) Book Value and Market Value
The book value and the market value of policy-reserve-matching bonds as of March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as

follows:
As of March 31,
2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
BOOK VAIUE «+++rrrreeramrrreessaanneeeesaaansneessaansneeessaansneessaanseeessannnenessasnnneeens ¥ 6,870,639 ¥ 8,375,688 $ 101,906
IMAFKET VAIUE -++rrreerenrrreerramnrreesaaannneessaasseeessaansneessaassneessannnnnessaannnneens 7,092,066 8,898,007 108,261

b) Risk Management Policy
DL and its certain subsidiary categorize their insurance products into sub-groups by the attributes of each product
and, in order to manage risks properly, formulate their policies on investments and resource allocation based on
the balance of the sub-groups. Moreover, they periodically check that the duration gap between policy-reserve-
matching bonds and policy reserves stays within a certain range.
The sub-groups of insurance products of DL are:

Year ended March 31, 2011 Year ended March 31, 2012

i) individual life insurance and annuities, i) individual life insurance and annuities,

i) non-participating single premium whole life insurance
(without duty of medical disclosure),

iii) group annuities, iy financial insurance and annuities, and
with the exception of certain types. iv) group annuities,
with the exception of certain types.

i) financial insurance and annuities, and

The sub-groups of insurance products of the subsidiary of DL are:

Year ended March 31, 2011 Year ended March 31, 2012

i) individual life insurance and individual annuity (yen-
denominated),

ii) individual life insurance and individual annuity (U.S.
- dollar-denominated), and

i) individual life insurance and individual annuity
(Australian dollar-denominated),

with the exception of certain types and contracts.
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c) Addition of Sub-groups
Effective the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012, in order to conduct appropriate duration control, taking into
account the duration of liabilities to promote more sophisticated ALM, DL added non-participating single premium
whole life insurance (without duty of medical disclosure) as a new sub-group and a certain subsidiary of DL added
individual life insurance and individual annuity (yen-denominated), individual life insurance and individual annuity
(U.S. dollar-denominated) and individual life insurance and individual annuity (Australian dollar-denominated) as
new sub-groups. These additions did not have any impact on profits and losses of DL and the subsidiary for the
year ended March 31, 2012.

Stocks of Subsidiaries
The amounts of stocks of and stakes in non-consolidated subsidiaries and affiliated companies DL held were as
follows:

As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
GHOCKS ++++e++ereerererserermersenersenesseneaseesaeeeae st esesaese st et st e e e be e et e e ebe s eseneenens ¥ 62,274 ¥ 42,766 $ 520
CAPILAI-+eseresreeeeseesrensessessesseessess s ees st 2,378 2,126 25
TOLA «-+erverereenerseneanentreenseseaseseneeseaseseeteseeseneese e eae s eseseaeneene et et neeneebe e eeen ¥ 64,653 ¥ 44,892 $ 546
Problem Loans
The amounts of credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, loans past due for three months or more, and
restructured loans, which were included in loans, were as follows:
As of March 31,
2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Credits to bankrupt bOrrowers: «« - e ¥ 5,034 ¥ 4,743 $ 57
De|inquent JOBINS 1-1sesensenseencaroarsssasvncansnsensnsanerneinevaronsensssonsncansinensioaronss 17‘349 15’574 189
Loans past due for three months or more --««+--eoreeviiminiinins N - -
RESIIUCTUIEd [O@NS: -+ rreerrerrrrriiiiiiiiiiiiiiersrrr e 3,255 1,452 17
TORA +eenreermrreerreeaaree s et e s eee e e et e e e ane e s ss e e s s e e e e b e e e ann e e sn e e e nn e e e b e e s anneenneeeas ¥ 25 639 ¥ 21,770 $ 264

Credits to bankrupt borrowers represent non-accrual loans, excluding the balances already written off, which meet
the conditions prescribed in Article 96, Paragraph 1, ltem 3 and 4 of the Enforcement Ordinance of the Corporation
Tax Law. Interest accruals of such loans are suspended since the principal of or interest on such loans is unlikely to be
collected.

Delinquent loans are credits that are delinquent other than credits to bankrupt borrowers and loans for which
interest payments have been suspended to assist and support the borrowers in the restructuring of their businesses.

Loans past due for three months or more are loans for which interest or principal payments are delinquent for three
months or more under the terms of loans excluding those classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers or delinquent
loans.

Restructured loans are loans for which certain concessions favorable to borrowers, such as interest reductions or
exemptions, postponement of principal or interest payments, release from repayment or other agreements have been
negotiated for the purpose of assisting and supporting the borrowers in the restructuring of their businesses. This
category excludes loans classified as credits to bankrupt borrowers, delinquent loans, and loans past due for three
months or more.

As a result of the direct write-off of loans, decreases in credits to bankrupt borrowers and delinquent loans were as
follows:

Years ended March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Credits to bankrupt borrowers:««« - e ¥ 739 ¥ 50 $0
Delinquent loans 3,093 69 0

Commitment Line
As of March 31, 2011 and 2012, there were unused commitment line agreements under which DL is the lender of
¥5,300 million and ¥2,300 million (US$27 million), respectively.
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10.

Accounting of Beneficial Interests in Securitized Mortgage Loans

As of March 31, 2011 and 2012, the trust beneficial interests, mostly obtained in the securitization of mortgage loans
originated by DL in August 2000, amounted to ¥25,105 million and ¥24,321 million (US$295 million) respectively, and
are included in loans in the consolidated balance sheets.

11. Accumulated Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets
Accumulated depreciation of tangible fixed assets as of March 31, 2011 and 2012 was ¥658,950 million and ¥621,752
million (US$7,564 million), respectively.
12. Assets and Liabilities Held in Separate Accounts
The total amounts of assets held in separate accounts defined in Article 118, Paragraph 1 of the Insurance Business
Act as of March 31, 2011 and 2012 were ¥2,461,453 million and ¥2,450,415 million (US$29,814 million), respectively.
Separate account liabilities were the same amount as the separate account assets.
13. Reinsurance
As of March 31, 2011 and 2012, reserves for outstanding claims for reinsured parts defined in Article 71, Paragraph
1 of the Enforcement Regulations of the Insurance Business Act, which is referred to in Article 73, Paragraph 3 of the
Regulations were ¥21 million and ¥19 million (US$0 million), respectively.
As of March 31, 2011 and 2012, the amounts of policy reserves provided for reinsured parts defined in Article 71,
g Paragraph 1 of the Regulations were ¥7,473 million and ¥5,923 million (US$72 million), respectively.
32> 14. Changes in Reserve for Policyholder Dividends
(9P Changes in reserve for policyholder dividends were as follows:
|:E Years Ended March 31,
<% 2011 2012 2012
2 (millions of yen) (millions of US$)
g Balance at the beginning of the year -+ e ¥ 329,214 ¥ 403,671 $ 4,911
wn Transfer from allowance for policyholder dividends -+« eerseeiiienns 92,500 - -
Dividends paid during the year -« e (106,426) (94,311) (1,147)
Interest accrual during the year -« - vererenimme 9,882 9,512 115
Provision for reserve for policyholder dividends:-«««««teeseerreeinennns 78,500 69,000 839
Balance at the end of the year: -+ e ¥ 403,671 ¥ 387,871 $4,719
15. Obligations to the Life Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan
The estimated future obligations of DL and its subsidiaries that operate a life insurance business in Japan to the Life
Insurance Policyholders Protection Corporation of Japan under Article 259 of the Insurance Business Act as of March
31, 2011 and 2012 were ¥61,381 million and ¥60,468 million (US$735 million), respectively. These obligations will be
recognized as operating expenses in the years in which they are paid.
16. Revaluation of Land
Based on the “Law for Revaluation of Land” (Publicly Issued Law 34, March 31, 1998), DL revalued land for business
use. The difference between fair value and book value resulting from the revaluation, net of related deferred taxes, is
recorded as reserve for land revaluation as a separate component of net assets and the related deferred tax liability is
recorded as deferred tax liabilities for land revaluation.
e Date of revaluation: March 31, 2001
e Method stipulated in Article 3 Paragraph 3 of the Law for Revaluation of Land
The fair value was determined based on the appraisal value publicly announced for tax assessment purposes
with certain reasonable adjustments in accordance with Article 2-1 and 2-4 of the Enforcement Ordinance of
the Law for Revaluation of Land.
* The excess of the new book value of the land over the fair value after revaluation in accordance with Article 10 of
the Law for Revaluation of Land was ¥55,701 million as of March 31, 2011, which included ¥2,419 million negative
excess (deficiency) attributable to real estate for rent, and ¥58,604 million (US$713 million) as of March 31, 2012,
which included ¥18,199 million (US$221 million) attributable to real estate for rent.
17. Subordinated Bonds

Subordinated bonds of ¥149,129 million and ¥148,652 million (US$1,808 million) shown in liabilities as of March 31,
2011 and 2012 included foreign currency-denominated subordinated bonds, the repayment of which is subordinated
to other obligations.
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Issuance Balance as of Balance as of Interest Maturity

Issuer Description Date April 1, 2011 March 31, 2012 rate (%) Collateral Date
(millions of yen)
Foreign currency (US dollar)
. . March 17, 41,567 41,090 March 17,
DL denom|natggnzusbordmated 2004 [499 mil USD] [499 mil USD] 5.73 None 2014
Foreign currency (US dollar)
h March 15, 107,562 107,562
DL denomln_ated perpetual 2011 [1,300 mil USD] [1,300 mil USD] 7.25 None Perpetual
subordinated bonds
Total - - 149,129 148,652 - - -
Note: 1. The figures in parentheses represent the principle amount in US dollars.
2. The following table shows the maturities of long-term subordinated bonds for the 5 years subsequent to March 31, 2012:
Due in one year Due after one year  Due after two years  Due after three years Due after four years
or less through two years through three years through four years through five years
(millions of yen)
Subordinated bonds.... - 41,095 - - -
Due in one year Due after one year Due after two years  Due after three years Due after four years
or less through two years through three years through four years through five years
(millions of US$)
Subordinated bonds.... - 500 - - -
18. Subordinated Debt
As of March 31, 2011 and 2012, other liabilities included subordinated debt of ¥350,000 million and ¥350,000 million
(US$4,258 million), respectively, the repayment of which is subordinated to other obligations.
Balance as of  Balance as of Average . Balance as of Balance as of
Category April 1,201 March 31, 2012 interestrate (%) M2 Apri1,2011  March 31, 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Current portions of long-term
borrowings ............................................ ¥ 2 ¥ 2 5.1 - $ 0 $ 0
Current portions of lease obligations ---- 363 491 - - 4 5
Long-term borrowings (excluding August 2013 -
current portion) «««-x-eresserserinnnnnnnens 363,605 380,325 2.8 perpetual 4,423 4,627
Lease obligations (excluding current April 2013 -
POFHION) «raereesesrsnssennnrsinnsneene 1,111 1,190 - February 2017 13 14
¥ 365,082 ¥ 382,010 - - $ 4,441 $ 4,647

Note: 1. Those borrowings and lease obligations above are included in the “other liabilities” on the consolidated balance sheets.

2. The average interest rate represents the weighted-average rate applicable to the balance as of March 31, 2012. As for lease obligations, description is
omitted since interest method is applied.

3. The following table shows the maturities of long-term borrowings (excluding the current portion or those without maturities) and lease obligations
(excluding the current portion) for the 5 years subsequent to March 31, 2012:

Due after one year Due after two years Due after three years Due after four years
through two years through three years through four years through five years
(millions of yen)
Long-term borrowings «----- ¥ 30,002 ¥ 1 ¥ 19,098 ¥ 0
Lease obligations::«««--««:suee 485 416 261 27
Due after one year Due after two years Due after three years Due after four years
through two years through three years through four years through five years
(millions of US$)
Long-term borrowings -+ $ 365 $0 $ 232 $0
Lease obligations::««---««:suee 5 5 3 0

19.

20.

Organizational Change Surplus
As of March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012, the amounts of DL's organizational change surplus stipulated in Article 91
of the Insurance Business Act were ¥117,776 million and ¥117,776 million (US$1,432 million), respectively.

Operating Expenses
Details of operating expenses for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows:
Years Ended March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Sales aCHVity EXPENSES -++swserrerrerrrucmriuriirireiriisisissi s ¥ 172,140 ¥ 192,206 $ 2,338
Sales management expenses 70,536 71,604 871
General management expenses 192,183 207,250 2,521
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21. Gains on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Details of gains on disposal of fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
(1T Te [T OSSOSO UPSTTPOON ¥ 3122 ¥ 1,293 $15
Buildings - 187 294 3
Other tangible fixed @assets -« :xovrmni 27 1 0
OFNEE ASSELS+++rverrererrertrreirrertesertssessestatestsretese st sbeseereaseseseesessestnaenens 11 5 0
TORAL c-eeverreneerereeserseneasentrsesereaseseseesesse st et et ebe s st eeesesbe st ene st nbe e eneneees ¥ 3350 ¥ 1,595 $19

22. Losses on Disposal of Fixed Assets
Details of losses on disposal of fixed assets for the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

- 2011 2012 2012
= (millions of yen) (millions of US$)
JZ> [175Y T SRR ¥ 530 ¥ 790 $ 9
() BUIIAINGS «++++esesersesssenisisisiisiiiiis s 2,515 829 10
'E Leased asSelS «octaererartimniiiiiiiiiiiiiieiisiiiiss e e s s - 3 0
% Other tangible fixed @ssets -+« xererenininii 180 308 3
(ap) SOFEWAIE -+ renrrrnr ettt 79 86 1
=
o - 100 1
&= 806 512 6
7= Y ¥4,113 ¥ 2,631 $32

23. Reconciliations of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Reconciliations of cash and cash equivalents to balance sheet accounts as of March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as
follows:

As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Cash and cash deposits ¥ 257,204 ¥ 315,187 $ 3,834
Call [OANS +++r+rreerrerrrerrerrrranseaeereesseesseeasessresssesssseasesnnesesesanesnsesseessessnes 244,700 249,200 3,031
Cash and cash equivalents:«-«rrerrermnin e ¥ 501,904 ¥ 564,387 $ 6,866

24. Breakdown of Assets and Liabilities of Newly Consolidated Subsidiaries as a Result of the Acquisition
of Shares
Associated with the consolidation of TAL Limited (“TAL”) as a result of the acquisition of share of TAL, the breakdown
of the assets and liabilities of TAL at the beginning of the consolidation, and the relationship between the acquisition
price and net cash flow for the acquisition were as follows:

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)

oY= £, ¥ 369,467 $ 4,495

Cash and cash deposits included in the above assets ««+-«eeeueees 23,279 283

FC Yo e Yo 1| TSR 69,176 841
LiQDIIIHIES -++-+e-sereererrerrernereeneeseeseaseessessessessessessessessessemnemneensensensensensenen (286,407) (3,484)
Policy reserves and others included in the above liabilities -----:--- (209,671) (2,551)

Acquisition price of shares of TAL (@) «««-«+-sxreerserssesssensinninnnnninnns 152,236 1,852
Gain on step acquisition (D) «««+«xssersersermemmmn (23,116) (281)
Acquisition cost before taking control of TAL (C) «+««--sxxsseereerssrssenannns (19,623) (238)
Cash and cash equivalents of TAL (d) (28,279) (283)

Net cash flow for the acquisition of shares of TAL (2 + b + ¢ + d)--- ¥ 86,217 $ 1,048
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25. Lease Transactions

Finance Leases (As lessee)
(1) Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net carrying amount of finance leases accounted for in the same
manner applicable to ordinary operating leases as of March 31, 2011 were as follows:

Acquisition Accumulated Net carrying
cost depreciation amount
(millions of yen)
Tangib|e fIXEA QSSELS rrrerrerrrrerrnrrirtirtiiiiirir ¥2,138 ¥ 1,653 ¥ 484
075 N ¥ 2,138 ¥ 1,653 Y 484

Acquisition cost, accumulated depreciation and net carrying amount of finance leases accounted for in the same
manner applicable to ordinary operating leases as of March 31, 2012 were as follows:

Acquisition Accumulated Net carrying Acquisition Accumulated Net carrying
cost depreciation amount cost depreciation amount
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Tangible fixed assets -+ ¥ 1,146 ¥1,016 ¥129 $13 $12 $1 -
Total -reeeerersrererenenns ¥ 1,146 ¥ 1,016 ¥ 129 $13 $12 $1 =
=
Note: Acquisition cost is calculated by the interest-payable-including-method, as the obligations under the finance leases represent a low percentage of tangible ch
fixed assets. ==
=
(2) Obligations under finance leases accounted for in the same manner applicable to ordinary operating leases as of c'7>
March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows: cr%
As of March 31, g
2011 2012 2012 C%
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
¥ 347 ¥129 $1
137 - -
¥ 484 ¥129 $1

Note: Obligations under the finance leases are calculated by the interest -payable- including- method, as the obligations under the finance leases represent a low
percentage of tangible fixed assets.

(3) Total payments for finance leases accounted for in the same manner applicable to ordinary operating leases and
depreciation for years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows:

Years Ended March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Total payments for the finance leases «+««+ - errrermiiiiinni, ¥ 432 ¥ 232 $2
Depreciation ....................................................................................... 432 232 2

(4) Calculation method of depreciation
Depreciation for leased assets is calculated over the lease term by the straight-line method assuming zero salvage
value.

Operating Leases (As lessee)
Future minimum lease payments under noncancellable operating leases as of March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as

follows:
As of March 31,
2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Due within one VB «eeverrenesneete ettt ¥ 627 14 1’623 $ 19
Due after one year ---- . 6,318 8,181 99
TOLAI -eevveereernerensernserneerseesneesneesseesseenseeaseensesnsesneesneesneesseesseesseesseensenn ¥ 6,945 ¥ 9,804 $119
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26. Financial Instruments
(1) Financial Instruments

Policies in Utilizing Financial Instrument

In an effort to manage our investment assets in a manner appropriate to our liabilities which arise from the insurance
policies we underwrite, we engage in asset liability management, or ALM, which considers the long-term balance
between assets and liabilities to ensure stable returns. With such strategy, DL and certain of its consolidated
subsidiaries hold fixed income investments, including bonds and loans, as the core of their asset portfolio. While
placing its financial soundness first, DL also holds stocks and foreign securities within its tolerable risk to enhance its
profitability and facilitate diversification of investment risks.

DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries use derivatives primarily to hedge market risks associated with their
existing asset portfolio and supplement our investment objectives. Moreover, they utilize derivatives to mitigate the
risks associated with guaranteed minimum benefits of individual variable annuity insurance.

With respect to financing, DL has raised capital directly from the capital markets by issuing subordinated bonds and
securitizing subordinated loans as well as indirectly from banks in order to strengthen its capital base and to invest
such capital in growing areas. To avoid impacts from interest-rate fluctuations, DL utilizes derivative transactions in
hedging some of such financial liabilities and adopts hedge accounting.

Financial Instruments Used and Their Risks

Securities included in financial assets of DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries, mainly stocks and bonds,
are categorized by their investment objectives such as held-to-maturity, policy-reserve-matching and available-for-
sale. Loans are exposed to credit risk arising from the defaults of obligors. Such securities and loans are exposed to
market fluctuation risk, credit risk, and interest-rate risk.

DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries might be exposed to liquidity risk in certain circumstance in which
they cannot access the financial market and make timely payments of principal, interest or other amounts. Also, some
of their loans payable and bonds payable which are floating interest rate based and denominated in foreign currency
are exposed to interest-rate risk and foreign currency risk.

They utilize interest rate swaps to hedge interest rate risk associated with their loans receivable and payable and
adopt hedge accounting.

In addition, they utilize foreign currency forward contracts and currency options to hedge foreign currency risks
associated with foreign currency-denominated bonds and foreign currency-denominated short-term deposits. DL
also utilizes currency swaps to hedge foreign currency risks associated with foreign currency-denominated debts and
adopts hedge accounting.

In applying the hedge accounting, in order to fulfill requirements stipulated in the “Opinion on the establishment
of accounting standards for financial instruments”, DL and certain of its consolidated subsidiaries have established
investment policy and procedure guidelines and clarified the risk of underlying assets to be hedged and derivative
instruments to be used, and conducted pre- and post-effectiveness tests of the transactions.

SNOILI3S VIONVNIH

Risk Management
The risk management system of DL and certain of its domestic consolidated subsidiaries is as follows:
(i) Market Risk Management

Under the internal investment policy and market risk management policy, they manage market risk by conducting

mid- to long-term asset allocation in a manner appropriate to their liabilities. Therefore, they categorize their

portfolio into sub-groups by the investment purpose and manage them taking into account each of their risk

characteristics.

a. Interest rate risk
They keep track of interest rates and durations of their assets and liabilities, monitor their internal analyses on
duration gap and interest rate sensitivity, and periodically report them to their board of directors. They utilize
interest rate swaps to hedge some of interest rate risk associated with certain of their financial assets.

b. Currency risk
They keep track of currency composition of their financial assets and liabilities, conduct sensitivity analyses,
and periodically report them to their board of directors. They utilize derivatives such as foreign currency forward
contracts and currency options to hedge some of the currency risk associated with certain of their financial
assets.

c. Fluctuation in market values
They define risk management policies for each component of their overall portfolio, including securities, and
specific risk management procedures. In such policies and procedures, they set and manage upper limits of
each asset balance and risk exposure.

Such management conditions are periodically reported by their risk management section to their board of

directors, etc.

d. Derivative transactions
For derivative transactions, they have established internal check system by segregating (i) executing
department, (ii) department which engages in assessment of hedge effectiveness, and (jii) back-office.
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Additionally, in order to limit speculative use of derivatives, they have put restrictions on utilization purpose such

as hedging and establish position limits for each asset class.

They also utilize derivatives in order to reduce the risk associated with guaranteed minimum maturity benefits
of variable annuities. In accordance with their internal regulations to manage the risks associated with their
guaranteed minimum maturity benefits, they (i) assess hedge effectiveness of derivative transactions, (ii) manage
gains and losses from derivative transactions on a daily basis, and (iii) periodically check their progress on
reducing the risk associated with their guaranteed minimum maturity benefits and measure estimated losses
based on VaR (value-at-risk).

The risk management section is in charge of managing overall risks including risks associated with their
guaranteed minimum maturity benefits, and periodically report the status of such management to their board of
directors, etc.

(i) Credit Risk Management
In accordance with the internal investment policy and credit risk management procedure guidelines, they have
established a credit management system related to loans, such as preliminary reviews on individual transactions,
credit limit setting, credit information management, internal credit rating, attachment of guarantees and collateral,
and follow-ups on problem loans. For corporate bond investment, the credit section sets investment caps on
individual issuers taking into account internal credit ratings and other factors. Excessive risk taking is restricted
since front offices make investment within those caps. That credit management has been conducted by the
credit and risk management sections, and has been periodically reported to their board of directors and other
management. Additionally, internal audit section has checked credit management status.

Credit risk of security issuers and counterparties with respect to derivative transactions is managed by the credit
section which sets upper limits for each issuer or counterparty and financial instrument and periodically monitors
credit information, and by the risk management section which periodically monitors current exposures.

In each of certain overseas consolidated subsidiaries, an investment committee established by their board of
directors develops its investment policy, and periodically checks the compliance and the status of each risk, thus
enabling the subsidiaries to manage their risks in conformity with the risk characteristics.

SNOILI3S VIONVNIH

Supplementary Explanation for Fair Value of Financial Instruments

As well as the values based on market prices, fair value of financial instruments includes values which are reasonably
calculated in case market prices do not exist. As the calculation of those values adopts certain assumptions,

those values may vary in case different assumptions are applied. Also, for the contract value regarding derivative
transactions described in “Fair Value of Financial Instruments”, the contract value itself does not indicate market risk
related to derivative transactions.

(2) Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheet, fair value and differences between carrying amount and fair
value as of March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows.

The following tables do not include financial instruments whose fair value was extremely difficult to recognize
(please refer to Note 2).

As of March 31, 2011

Carrying Gains
amount Fair value (Losses)
(millions of yen)
(1) Cash and deposits:-««+-«resreersrerninnnnnens ¥ 257,204 ¥ 257,218 ¥ 13
(2) Call loans 244,700 244,700 -
(3) Monetary claims bought:««-««-seeseeseanenns 291,115 291,115 -
(4) Money held in trust-««- - eeeememmsnnnnnn 62,838 62,838 -
(5) Securities
1. Trading SeCUrities «««+ ereereerinenninnnns 2,376,259 2,376,259 -
2. Held-to-maturity bonds -««-««-seeeeeeee 145,823 150,247 4,424
3. Policy-reserve-matching bonds :---::-- 6,870,639 7,092,066 221,426
4. Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliated
21,256 42,999 21,743
5. Available-for-sale securities ««-----eeeeeee 14,943,895 14,943,895 -
(6) OGNS ++rrrerrarearenrarenrnirtirairnrirnarnnrareararanes 3,627,991
Reserves for possible loan losses *V .- (11,033)
3,616,957 3,706,833 89,875
Total assets --«werrrrrrrrsreserns ¥ 28,830,691 ¥ 29,168,174 ¥ 337,483

The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited 75



As of March 31, 2011

Carrying Gains

amount Fair value (Losses)
(millions of yen)
(1) Bonds payable:--««««teeveeemmeenniniiinns ¥ 149,129 ¥ 149,557 ¥ 427
(2) Long-term borrowings ««--««--««-ssseeesessunnns 363,607 391,832 28,224
Total liabilities ««-«--xxeeererrensnniininas ¥ 512,737 ¥ 541,389 ¥ 28,652
Derivative transactions *?

1. Hedge accounting not applied -« ¥ 1,519 ¥ 1,519 ¥ -
2. Hedge accounting applied:«--««--«--:-- [116,863] [114,253] 2,609
Total derivative transactions «-«««--seeeeee ¥ [115,343] ¥ [112,734] ¥ 2,609

(*1) Excluding general reserves for possible loan losses and specific reserves for possible loan losses related to loans.
(*2) Credits/debts from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Figures in [] are net debts.

As of March 31, 2012

I Carrying Gains Carrying Gains
jZ> amount Fair value (Losses) amount Fair value (Losses)
= (millions of yen) (millions of US$)
g (1) Cash and deposits:-««--«x-ssrssersserssnnsianienns ¥ 315,187 ¥ 315,204 ¥ 17 $ 3834 $ 3,835 $ 0
— (2) Call 10@NS ++++++erererreresssreressiresssirinsisenensenes 249,200 249,200 - 3,031 3,031 -
rU|3| (3) Monetary claims bought-««-««-«eeeeeeenenns 294,324 294,324 - 3,581 3,581 -
2 (4) Money held in trust-««-«-eeeemsemmnnnnen 48,266 48,266 - 587 587 -
g (5) Securities
wn 1. Trading SECUIties «+-x-rseersresersnerseenanss 2,581,400 2,581,400 - 31,407 31,407 -
2. Held-to-maturity bonds 135,828 141,079 5,250 1,652 1,716 63
3. Policy-reserve-matching bonds -+ 8,375,688 8,898,007 522,318 101,906 108,261 6,355
4. Stocks of subsidiaries and affiliated
Companies ......................................... 1 ’932 1’932 - 23 23 -
5. Available-for-sale securities -+« 14,761,239 14,761,239 - 179,598 179,598 -
(6) LONS +++evrrereseerenessenintisinisis i 3,413,620 41,533
Reserves for possible loan losses *V ... (8,812) (107)
3,404,808 3,498,821 94,013 41,426 42,569 1,143
Total assets -« reerrrrrrrrsrnins ¥ 30,167,876 ¥ 30,789,476 ¥621,599 $367,060 $374,613 $ 7,562
(1) Bonds payable ¥ 148,652 ¥ 155,194 ¥ 6542 $ 1,808 $ 1,888 $ 79
(2) Long-term borrowings ««+«««««sssessessesseens 380,327 367,611 (12,716) 4,627 4,472 (154)
Total liabilities ««-«+-xereemerrerinniins ¥ 528980 ¥ 522,805 ¥ (6,174 $ 6436 $ 6,360 $ (75

Derivative transactions *?

1. Hedge accounting not applied -+« ¥ [14,235] ¥ [14,235] ¥ - $ 73] $ [173] $ -
2. Hedge accounting applied:---«---+«++-: [138,756] [137,321] 1,434 [1,688] [1,670] 17
Total derivative transactions ««««-«-«--. ¥ [152,992] ¥ [151,557] ¥ 1,434 $ [1,861] $ [1,843] $ 17

(*1) Excluding general reserves for possible loan losses and specific reserves for possible loan losses related to loans.
(*2) Credits/debts from derivative transactions are presented on a net basis. Figures in [ ] are net debts.

Note 1: Notes to Methods for Calculating Fair Value of Financial Instruments, Securities and Derivative
Transactions

Assets

(1) Cash and deposits
As for deposits with maturities, except for those which are close to maturity, present value is calculated by
discounting the carrying amount for each segment based on the term, using a deposit interest rate which is
assumed to be applied to new deposit. As for deposits close to maturity and deposits without maturity, fair
value is based on the carrying amount since fair value is close to the carrying amount.

(2) Call loans
Since all call loans are close to due date and their fair value is close to carrying amounts, fair value of call loans
is based on their carrying amount.

(8) Monetary claims bought
Fair value of monetary claims bought is based on the reasonably calculated price.
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(4) Money held in trust
The fair value of stocks is based on the price on stock exchanges and that of bonds is based on the price on
bond markets or price presented by counterparty financial institutions. The fair value of mutual funds is based
on unit price.

For details on derivative transactions of money held in trust, please refer to 29. Derivative Transactions.

(5) Securities
The fair value of stocks is based on the price on stock exchanges and that of bonds is based on the price on
bond markets or price presented by counterparty financial institutions. The fair value of mutual funds is based
on unit price. As for ownership stakes in partnerships, the amount equivalent to partnership interest in fair
value of the partnership assets is recorded as fair value of the stake in the partnership. Additionally, notes of
the securities for each investment purpose are described in 27. Securities.

(6) Loans
The fair value of loans is calculated by discounting future cash flows of the subject loan, using interest rates
corresponding to the internal credit rating and remaining period which are assumed to be applied to new loans
to the subject borrower.

Additionally, for risk-monitored loans, reserve for possible loan losses is calculated based on the present
value of estimated future cash flows or the amount deemed recoverable from collateral and guarantees and fair
value is close to the carrying amount on the balance sheet minus reserve for possible loan losses at the end of
the fiscal year. Therefore, that amount (carrying amount on the balance sheet minus reserve for possible loan
losses) is recorded as fair value of risk-monitored loans.

Also, loans without a due date because of their characteristics that the exposure is limited to the amount of
their collaterals, are deemed to have fair value close to book value, taking into account estimated repayment
period and interest rates. Therefore, their book value is recorded as the fair value.

Liabilities

(1) Bonds payable
The fair value of bonds issued by DL is based on the price on the bond market.

(2) Long-term borrowings
The fair value of long-term borrowings is calculated by discounting future cash flows, using interest rates
corresponding to internal credit rating and remaining periods which are assumed to be applied to new
borrowing. Also, certain long-term borrowings are deemed to have fair value close to book value, taking into
account interest rates. Therefore, their book value is recorded as the fair value.

SNOILI3S VIONVNIH

Derivative Instruments
For details on derivative transactions, please refer to 29. Derivative Transactions.

Note 2: Available-for-sale securities whose fair value is extremely difficult to recognize are as follows and are not
included in the fair value of (5) Securities
As of March 31,
2011 2012 2012
Carrying amount

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
1. Unlisted domestic Stocks *H2) wevenuiiiiiiiiiii ¥ 164,345 ¥ 160,745 $ 1,955
2. Unlisted foreign stocks 12 17,069 16,459 200
3. Other foreign securities *"*2 969,424 916,996 11,157
4. Other SECUIHES FVF2) cuerueruerireeeeseestessessessesse s st sse st ese e et e e e eeseeneas 89,037 88,502 1,076
TORQI ++ereereerrernernernereeneeeesensensessessessessessesseseessessessesaeeneensensansensansans ¥ 1,239,877 ¥ 1,182,703 $14,389

(*1) These securities cannot be assigned a market value because of unavailability of tradable markets, and they are excluded from disclosure of market value
information.
(*2) DL recorded impairment charges of ¥259 million for the year ended March 31, 2011 and ¥830 million (US$ 10 million) for the year ended March 31, 2012.
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Note 3: Scheduled redemptions of monetary claims and securities with maturities
As of March 31, 2011

Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after

or less through 5 years  through 10 years 10 years
(millions of yen)
Cash and dEPOSILS ++eersesrrererrerrmeriimninitt e ¥ 256,704 ¥ 300 ¥ 200 ¥ -
Call |OQNS -++++eeerrrerrrterirrresiresiitis s s s e s sbse s b s ba e s a e san e s sar e s be e s 244,700 - — -
Monetary claims bought ................................................................. - 9,343 - 271 ’645
Money held in trust #1) e 1,000 479 — -
Securities:
Held-to-maturity bonds (Donds) -« ceeseemmmeiiiis 10,000 50,400 - 47,900
Held-to-maturity bonds (foreign securities):«« -+ seeeseenneninnens - 41,575 - -
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (bonds) ---- - 588,586 220,320 6,116,459
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds)«««--««++seeeeee 343,004 1,491,695 2,313,382 2,284,989
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities)-- 172,323 2,002,335 1,363,306 1,902,048
- Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) --- 3,820 53,898 18,490 24,429
3§> LOANS #2) ¢uuretrurteeureeareessuneessteessseeeasee s saneesbeeeeabeesanne s sar e e e neeesneennne 333,410 1,280,893 968,507 430,493
= (*1) Money held in trust without maturities amounted to ¥61,358 million was not included.
Q (*2) Loans for which interest or principal payments cannot be forecasted, such as credit to bankrupt obligors, substantially bankrupt obligors and obligors at risk of
':E bankruptcy, amounted to ¥18,955 million were not included. Also, ¥595,172 million of loans without maturities were not included.
rU|3| As of March 31, 2012
C:|) Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after
o or less through 5 years  through 10 years 10 years
% (millions of yen)
Cash and deposits ......................................................................... ¥ 314,687 ¥ 300 ¥ 200 ¥ -
Call |0ANS -+ rerrerrrrrrrarrirtirirr e 249,200 - - —
Monetary claims bought ................................................................. 919 11,425 900 262,691
Money held in trust ®1 e 483 - - _
Securities:
Held-to-maturity bonds (DONds) -+« «eeeseersmeimimiiiiis - 50,400 - 47,900
Held-to-maturity bonds (foreign securities):««-««+«seeraeernnninneens - 41,095 - -

Policy-reserve-matching bonds (bonds) 16,136 620,386 236,695 7,453,470
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (foreign securities) ---«---««--xseeeae - 23,000 31,767 3,674
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds) ««-««--««--se-ue 202,497 1,684,551 2,379,342 2,775,935
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities)-- 127,631 1,619,116 1,047,553 1,805,067
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) -+ 39,733 24,426 17,321 23,099
OGNS (2 cvevereruerueeneeneeneaneeueeseeeeseeseeseeseeseesaesaessesaessesnesnesnesneeneeneens 387,432 1,177,273 793,054 472,117

As of March 31, 2012

Duein 1 year Due after 1 year Due after 5 years Due after

or less through 5 years  through 10 years 10 years
(millions of US$)
Cash and deposits ......................................................................... $ 3,828 $ 3 $ 2 $ _
Call [QANS -+++sveerrerreersrerresreemresssessseaaseensesseeseresseesseessesssessseesnsensesneens 3,031 - — _
Monetary claims bought ................................................................. 11 139 10 3,196
Money held in trUSt #1) e 5 - - -
Securities:
Held-to-maturity bonds (DONdS) -«««-«xeeseersmeimiiiiis - 613 - 582
Held-to-maturity bonds (foreign securities) - 500 - -
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (bonds) ---- 196 7,548 2,879 90,685
Policy-reserve-matching bonds (foreign securities) -««««+sseeeeee - 279 386 44
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (bonds) ««-«---««--sx-e 2,463 20,495 28,949 33,774
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (foreign securities)-- 1,552 19,699 12,745 21,962
Available-for-sale securities with maturities (other securities) -+ 483 297 210 281
LOANS #2) tuterurerureaneansearteesstesseesessnesenesanesseesseesseesse e s e eneenneneneneneaneenne 4,713 14,323 9,649 5,744

(*1) Money held in trust without maturities amounted to ¥47,783 million (US$ 581 million) was not included.

(*2) Loans for which interest or principal payments cannot be forecasted, such as credit to bankrupt obligors, substantially bankrupt obligors and obligors at risk
of bankruptcy, amounted to ¥17,993 million (US$ 218 million) were not included. Also, ¥565,239 million (US$ 6,877 million) of loans without maturities were not
included.
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Note 4: Scheduled maturities of bonds and long term borrowings

As of March 31, 2011

Duein1year Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after
or less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years
(millions of yen)
Bonds payable ®V...ceeueenee ¥ - ¥ - ¥ 41,575 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Long term borrowings *2.- 2 2 30,002 1 0 1
(*1) ¥107,562 million of bonds payable without maturities were not included.
(*2) ¥333,597 million of long term borrowings without maturities were not included.
As of March 31, 2012
Duein1year Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after
or less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years
(millions of yen)
Bonds payable *V...cceeueeee ¥ - ¥ 41,095 ¥ - ¥ - ¥ - ¥ -
Long term borrowings *2-- 2 30,002 1 19,098 0 0
-n
As of March 31, 2012 =
Duein1year Due after 1 year Due after 2 years Due after 3 years Due after 4 years Due after jZ>
or less through 2 years through 3 years through 4 years through 5 years 5 years (]
(millions of US$) ,:E
Bonds payable *..weeenee $ - $ 500 $ - $ - $ - $ - wn
Long term borrowings 2. 0 365 0 232 0 0 cE
(*1) ¥107,562 million (US$ 1,308 million) of bonds payable without maturities were not included. 5
(*2) ¥331,221 million (US$ 4,029 million) of long term borrowings without maturities were not included. %
27. Securities
(1) Trading Securities:
As of March 31,
2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Gains (losses) on valuation of trading securities -««-««-««sxereereinennes ¥ (31,414) ¥ 89,603 $1,090
(2) Held-to-maturity Securities:
As of March 31, 2011
Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses)
(millions of yen)
Held-to-maturity securities with
unrealized gains:
(1) Bonds ¥ 103,924 ¥ 105,161 ¥1,237
1. Government bonds - 103,924 105,161 1,237
41,899 45,085 3,186
41,899 45,085 3,186
Total reereeereeses ¥ 145,823 ¥ 150,247 ¥ 4,424
As of March 31, 2012
Carrying Market Unrealized Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses) amount value gains (losses)

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Held-to-maturity securities with

unrealized gains:

(1) BONds:seeeeemsemsenninniiiiiens ¥ 94,524 ¥ 96,999 ¥ 2,474 $ 1,150 $1,180 $ 30
1. Government bonds «-----sseeeeees 94,524 96,999 2,474 1,150 1,180 30
41,303 44,079 2,775 502 536 33

41,303 44,079 2,775 502 536 33

Total eeeseeeesinn, ¥ 135,828 ¥ 141,079 ¥ 5,250 $ 1,652 $1,716 $63
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(3) Policy-reserve-matching Bonds:
As of March 31, 2011

Carrying Market Unrealized
amount value gains (losses)
(millions of yen)

Policy-reserve-matching bonds with
unrealized gains:

(1) Bonds ¥5,957,244  ¥6,192,157 ¥ 234,913
1. Government bonds «--:--seeeeeees 5,541,511 5,759,162 217,650
2. Local government bonds -::--- 168,243 174,697 6,453
3. Corporate bonds -+-«««+--xeeeueeee 247,489 258,298 10,809

Subtotal «-eeeeeesseesenn ¥ 5,957,244  ¥6,192,157 ¥ 234,913

Policy-reserve-matching bonds with
unrealized losses:

(1) BONds:oereurrrrermerreeeeee ¥ 913,395 ¥ 899,908 ¥ (13,486)
1. Government bonds «--«--seeeeeees 893,943 880,681 (13,261)
-n 2. Local government bonds -+ 13,752 13,706 45)
j% 3. Corporate bonds -+-«««+-sxeeeueeee 5,699 5,519 (179)
= Subtotal --- ¥ 913,395 ¥ 899,908 ¥ (13,486)
g Total:eeeeereees ¥ 6,870,639 ¥ 7,092,066 ¥ 221,426
=
n
g As of March 31, 2012
— Carrying Market Unrealized Carrying Market Unrealized
% amount value gains (losses) amount value gains (losses)
[75) (millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Policy-reserve-matching bonds with
unrealized gains:
(1) BONds:seeeseesensnnsnnsiniii ¥ 8,015,770 ¥ 8,538,824 ¥ 523,053 $ 97,527 $ 103,891 $6,363
1. Government bonds ---«--«+x--- 7,528,520 8,032,442 503,921 91,598 97,730 6,131
2. Local government bonds -+ 192,491 199,446 6,955 2,342 2,426 84
3. Corporate bonds -««-«--seeeeeues 294,758 306,935 12,177 3,586 3,734 148
(2) Foreign securities- 37,160 37,668 507 452 458 6
1. Foreign bonds «-«+--eesseeeseeneens 37,160 37,668 507 452 458 6
Subtotal «-eeererree ¥ 8,052,931 ¥ 8,576,493 ¥ 523,561 $ 97,979 $ 104,349 $6,370
Policy-reserve-matching bonds with
unrealized losses:
(1) BONdS:seremsermerensienseaiaieiens ¥ 299,937 ¥ 298,892 ¥ (1,044) $ 3,649 $ 3,636 $ (12
1. Government bonds «+-:«+eveeee 295,694 295,054 (639) 3,597 3,589 (7)
2. Local government bonds -::--- - - - - -
3. Corporate bonds 4,243 3,838 (404) 51 46 4)
(2) Foreign securities---- 22,819 22,621 (198) 277 275 2
1. Foreign bonds ««-+-seseeeereeas 22,819 22,621 (198) 277 275 )
Subtotal «eeeereerere ¥ 322,757 ¥ 321,514 ¥ (1,242 $ 3,926 $ 3,911 $ (15)
Total e ¥ 8,375,688 ¥ 8,898,007 ¥ 522,318 $ 101,906 $ 108,261 $ 6,355
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(4) Available-for-sale Securities:
As of March 31, 2011

Carrying Purchase Unrealized
amount cost gains (losses)

(millions of yen)

Available-for-sale securities with
unrealized gains:

(1) BONds:ereermmmmmnninnniiieaens ¥ 5,217,984 ¥ 5,041,520 ¥ 176,463
1. Government bonds «--«--seeeeeees 3,308,218 3,201,987 106,230
2. Local government bonds -::--- 127,724 122,926 4,798
3. Corporate bonds -+-«««+--xeeeueeee 1,782,041 1,716,606 65,434
(2) Domestic StOCKS -«+sxxsueerseareens 1,583,226 1,087,448 495,777
(3) Foreign securities- 2,174,641 2,067,155 107,486
1. Foreign bonds -+--- 2,054,192 1,968,380 85,811
2. Other foreign securities -+ 120,449 98,774 21,674
(4) Other securities:«-«--«seemeeneeen 327,200 309,805 17,394
Subtotal «-eereeereenen ¥ 9,303,052 ¥ 8,505,930 ¥ 797,121 m
Available-for-sale securities with jz>
unrealized losses: =
(1) BONdS:seermseeserenrenseiiaieaiens ¥ 1,373,463 ¥ 1,386,762 ¥ (13,298) cj;>>
1. Government bonds ««------seeees 1,089,238 1,095,942 (6,704) —
2. Local government bonds ------ 1,589 1,608 18) L
3. Corporate bonds - 282,636 289,212 (6,576) 2
(2) Domestic StOCKS »-«+xxssseerserseena 638,124 828,228 (190,104) g
(3) Foreign securities:«-----xxsseeseeea 3,854,491 4,061,916 (207,424) wn
1. Foreign bonds -+ 3,527,013 3,681,068 (154,054)
2. Other foreign securities -+ 327,477 380,848 (58,370)
(4) Other securities:««+eremrermnennns 81,879 94,180 (12,300)
Subtotal «eeeeeseesen ¥ 5,947,959 ¥ 6,371,088 ¥ (423,129)
Lo ¥ 15,251,011 ¥ 14,877,018 ¥ 373,992

Note: Figures in the chart above include (1) certificates of deposit and (2) trust beneficiary rights, which were recorded as cash and deposits and monetary claims
bought on the consolidated balance sheets, respectively. The aggregate purchase cost and carrying amount of such certificates of deposits were ¥16,000
million and ¥16,000 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2011. The aggregate purchase cost and carrying amount of trust beneficiary rights were ¥281,006
million and ¥291,115 million, respectively, as of March 31, 2011.
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As of March 31, 2012

Carrying Purchase Unrealized Carrying Purchase Unrealized
amount cost gains (losses) amount cost gains (losses)
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Available for sale securities with
unrealized gains:
(1) BONds:seeeseemensenenneiiiis ¥ 7,078,074 ¥ 6,794,699 ¥ 283,375 $ 86,118 $ 82,670 $ 3,447
1. Government bonds 5,184,182 4,972,746 211,435 63,075 60,503 2,572
2. Local government bonds -+ 121,595 116,314 5,281 1,479 1,415 64
3. Corporate bonds -««-«--sreveeeee 1,772,296 1,705,638 66,658 21,563 20,752 811
(2) Domestic StOCKS -«+xxsssresmeeneea 1,355,047 889,514 465,533 16,486 10,822 5,664
(3) Foreign securities:««-«+--ssseeseeea 4,334,987 4,117,939 217,048 52,743 50,102 2,640
1. Foreign bonds «--+--eesseeeseneens 4,187,956 3,991,235 196,720 50,954 48,561 2,393
2. Other foreign securities -+« 147,031 126,703 20,327 1,788 1,541 247
(4) Other securities:-«---weeeeeneeen 330,546 306,526 24,019 4,021 3,729 292
Subtotal «-eeeeeere ¥ 13,098,657 ¥ 12,108,680 ¥ 989,976 $ 159,370 $ 147,325 $ 12,044
o Available for sale securities with
jZ> unrealized losses:
% (1) BONds:seremmermernerneseeeeeee ¥ 273,060 ¥ 286,468 ¥ (13,407) $ 3,322 $ 3,485 $ (163)
= 1. Government bonds ««++-seeeuees 96,634 96,715 (80) 1,175 1,176 0)
; 2. Local government bonds -::--- 4 4 0) 0 0 0)
m 3. Corporate bonds -««-«+-sreeeeees 176,422 189,749 (13,326) 2,146 2,308 (162)
c—:|) (2) Domestic StOCKS »-++-xsnerrereens 617,513 785,222 (167,709) 7,513 9,553 (2,040)
% (3) Foreign securities:«-----exreeeeeas 1,008,037 1,098,264 (95,226) 12,203 13,362 (1,158)
wn 1. Foreign bonds «+--«++seeeeveeennnes 708,774 762,126 (53,351) 8,623 9,272 (649)
2. Other foreign securities -+ 294,263 336,138 (41,875) 3,580 4,089 (509)
(4) Other securities:«---xeemeeneenn 78,294 89,691 (11,396) 952 1,091 (138)
Subtotal ¥ 1,971,907 ¥ 2,259,647 ¥ (287,740) $ 23,992 $ 27,492 $ (3,500)
Total eeeeerreeees ¥ 15,070,564 ¥ 14,368,327 ¥ 702,236 $ 183,362 $174,818 $ 8,544

Note: Figures in the chart above include (1) certificates of deposit and (2) trust beneficiary rights, which were recorded as cash and deposits and monetary claims
bought on the consolidated balance sheets, respectively. The aggregate purchase cost and carrying amount of such certificates of deposits were ¥15,000
million (US$182 million) and ¥15,000 million (US$182 million), respectively, as of March 31, 2012. The aggregate purchase cost and carrying amount of trust
beneficiary rights were ¥275,893 million (US$3,356 million) and ¥294,324 million (US$3,581 million), respectively, as of March 31, 2012.

(5) Held-to-maturity Securities Sold:
DL and its consolidated subsidiaries sold no held-to-maturity securities during the years ended March 31, 2011
and 2012.

(6) Policy-reserve-matching Bonds Sold:
Policy-reserve-matching bonds sold during the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows:

Year Ended March 31, 2011

Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses
(millions of yen)

(1) BONds:resreersmmerrnenniiessniiins ¥ 371,399 ¥ 14,842 ¥ -
1. Government bonds «-----sseeeeees 358,388 13,967 -
2. Local government bonds -::--- 3,874 276 -
3. Corporate bonds - 9,136 598 -

(2) Foreign securities:««--«--sxseeseeens - - -
1. Foreign bonds «-«---wseeeeeeense - - -
2. Other foreign securities - - - -

TOtAl +veeeereeeemreeesaneesreeasaeeens ¥ 371,399 ¥ 14,842 ¥ -
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Year Ended March 31, 2012

Amounts Realized Realized Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses sold gains losses
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)

(1) BONds:eremremernerresnsneee ¥ 812,327 ¥ 47,817 ¥ - $9,883 $ 581 $ -
1. Government bonds «--«--seeeeeees 812,327 47,817 - 9,883 581 -
2. Local government bonds -+ - - - - - -
3. Corporate bonds -««-«--seeeeeee - - - - - -

(2) Foreign securities- - - - - - -
1. Foreign bonds -+ - - - - - -
2. Other foreign securities -+ - - - - - -

Total:eeeeerreeees ¥ 812,327 ¥ 47,817 ¥ - $ 9,883 $ 581 $ -

(7) Available-for-sale Securities Sold:
Available-for-sale securities sold during the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were as follows.

Year Ended March 31, 2011

-

Amounts Realized Realized =

sold gains losses jz>

(millions of yen) ]

(1) BoONds: e sreemsmenmmiiniiiiiiiiiins ¥ 2,617,814 ¥ 55,019 ¥ 4513 ,:E

1. Government bonds ««------seeees 2,380,246 47,352 4,297 wn

2. Local government bonds -+ 4,042 63 60 crg

3. Corporate bonds - 233,526 7,602 155 g

(2) Domestic StOCKS «++seeesurermnnnnnns 400,694 79,808 34,001 c%
(3) Foreign securities:««-«+-xeseereeea 2,811,560 62,690 82,411
1. Foreign bonds --- 2,743,815 53,931 78,556
2. Other foreign securities 67,745 8,758 3,855
(4) Other securities:««+«eerrevrnennns 2,669 - 34
Total reerereerses ¥ 5,832,740 ¥ 197,518 ¥ 120,960

Year Ended March 31, 2012

Amounts Realized Realized Amounts Realized Realized
sold gains losses sold gains losses
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)

(1) BONds:seeesesssensnrensiiiiiis ¥ 1,645,408 ¥ 44,429 ¥ 8,802 $ 20,019 $ 540 $ 107
1. Government bonds --«««-«+s--- 1,415,930 37,775 4,119 17,227 459 50
2. Local government bonds ----:- - - - - - -
3. Corporate bonds 229,477 6,654 4,682 2,792 80 56

(2) Domestic StOCKS -«+xxxsurerseereeans 298,115 55,516 55,177 3,627 675 671

(3) Foreign securities:««--««-xxsseeseeea 4,071,073 93,900 116,737 49,532 1,142 1,420
1. Foreign bonds «-«+--eesseessenneens 4,034,770 90,075 108,993 49,090 1,095 1,326
2. Other foreign securities -+ 36,302 3,824 7,743 441 46 94

(4) Other securities: - eeemrermnennns 17,332 17,956 - 210 218 -

Total e ¥ 6,031,928 ¥ 211,801 ¥ 180,717 $ 73,390 $ 2,576 $2,198

(8) Securities Written Down:
DL and its consolidated subsidiaries write down the balance of certain available-for-sale securities with market
values (1) when the market value of such securities declines by 50%, or more, of its purchase cost or (2) when
the market value of such securities without a certain level of creditworthiness declines by 30% or more, but less
than 50%, of its purchase cost unless it is deemed that there is a possibility that the fair value of the security could
recover to equal or exceed the purchase cost. The aggregate amounts written down from the balance of available-
for-sale securities with market value for the year ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 were ¥179,362 million and
¥43,882 million (US$533 million), respectively.
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28. Money Held in Trust
Money Held in Trust for Trading:

As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Carrying amount on the consolidated balance sheets -« eoeeeeunes ¥ 62,838 ¥ 48,266 $ 587
Gains (losses) on valuation of money held in trust --«-««seeeeesennnnes (5,715) (14,507) (176)

29. Derivative Transactions
Derivative Transactions (Hedge Accounting Not Applied)
(1) Currency-related transactions
As of March 31, 2011

Notional
amount/ Fair Gains
contract value (Losses)
-n value
= (millions of yen)
32> Over-the-counter transactions:
(=) Foreign currency forward contracts:
,:E SOl - reererereee ¥ 241,516 ¥ (4,703) ¥ (4,703)
rf{_IJ U.S. dollar: e 147,127 (855) (855)
2 EUFO -evmeeeis 54,352 (2,885) (2,885)
) British pound -«+-««eeseesersininnneens 15,375 (309) (309)
&= Canadian dollar ---sw-seereeeenes 4,011 (117) (117)
Australian dollar:--«««--eereeeeneen 18,708 422) (422)
Swedish krona:«-««erereneninenne 533 (34) (34)
DaniSh KroNE:«--«+«-seesrerseeererenseene 641 (52) (52)
Norwegian Krone -««-««seeseesueenns 253 (16) (16)
Swiss franc -+ 168 3) (3)
Singapore dollar 88 1) 1)
POlISh ZIOty «+erreseereeeeerenrensnensenes 13 0 0
Mexican PESO reerresrrrssnennninaiaenn 243 (6) (6)
BOUGht-e+esrereresreressernisiesnisisies 159,357 3,078 3,978
82,440 726 726
44,678 2,159 2,159
British pound «+-««+eseeeseennniennnns 9,148 116 116
Polish ZIoty «-ereeeeeereniiiiiens 1,109 29 29
SWISS franc «---weerserrsensinnninnns 638 15 15
Singapore dollar ««-««-sseeeeeereeans 486 9 9
Norwegian Krone «--«««-eeeeeeennes 357 9 9
Australian dollar-- 16,950 804 804
Canadian dollar -----eeeeeeemmeenannnns 2,947 88 88
SWedish KON - -+« eeeesrersesreerieens 253 7 7
Hong Kong dollar ««-«-eeeeeeeeens 228 6 6
Danish krone-----+«eeeeeeeeinnnananans 114 5 5
Indian rupee---- 3 0 0
Mexican PESO wrrrerrrmrrrrarrnneean 0 0 0
Total -reererrerrirerrrrir ¥ (725)

Note: 1. Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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As of March 31, 2012

(A) Notional ~ Over (A) Notional ~ Over
amount/ 1 Year Fair Gains amount/ 1 Year Fair Gains
contract  included value (Losses) contract included value (Losses)
value in (A) value in (A)
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:
SOl - rererererer e ¥436,729 ¥ - ¥(15,755) ¥(15,755) $5313 $ - $(191) $(191)
260,489 - (9,743) (9,743) 3,169 - (118) (118)
97,106 - (4,894) (4,894) 1,181 - (59) (59)
British pound «+--+-eereererenienennns 14,579 - (814) (814) 177 - ©) (©)]
Canadian dollar -«--«+-seeeeseeeneenas 19,478 - (20) (20) 236 - 0) (©)]
Australian dollar---«--«-ereereenns 36,769 - (102) (102) 447 - (1) (1)
Swedish Krona:--«--«--seeeeseeneens 3,600 - (78) (78) 43 - ) )
Danish Krone:«««««-ceseeeseesiininnns 2,086 - 47) 47) 25 - 0) 0)
Norwegian Krone «««-««-sssseeeenees 870 - 43) 43) 10 - 0) 0) M
Swiss franc 401 - (4 @) 4 - 0) ) 32>
Hong Kong dollar «««-eseeeeeene 916 - ()] 3) 11 - 0) 0) CZD
Singapore dollar «-««-sxxeereeseenns 274 - 0) (0) 3 - 0) 0) =
Mexican peso 155 - @) @) 1 - ) () c';
BOUGHt:-++eseseeeresemessessesseseies 242 580 - 1,581 1,581 2,951 - 19 19 crg
U.S. dollar: - «emeemmeemeanennnanenans 116,470 - 628 628 1,417 - 7 7 —
EUFO «-veerrerreermrermresneesnessseesseenneenne 62,163 - 1,154 1,154 756 - 14 14 %
British pound -+« seesemsemninnninnnns 6,124 - 85 85 74 - 1 1 wn
POliSh ZIOty «+seseeeesreerseresrieeennnens 918 - 11 11 11 - 0 0
SWISS franC -+« rereererrereerenranraneunnas 502 - 11 11 6 - 0 0
Singapore dollar ««--«+-xweeeereeneen 509 - 5 5 6 - 0 0
Norwegian Krone --«----eeeeeeeenees 945 - 0 0 11 - 0 0
Australian dollar---«-««-eroeeseenen 32,628 - (334) (334) 396 - 4) @)
Canadian dollar -«----eesverseerennns 16,974 - ) ) 206 - ) 0)
Swedish krona--- 3,189 - 10 10 38 - 0 0
Hong Kong dollar «---«--eeeeeeeenes 310 - 0 0 3 - 0 0
Danish Krone::--««+ sseeereeinninnnnns 1,799 - 10 10 21 - 0 0
Indian rupee-- 14 - 0 0 0 - 0 0
MEXICAN PESO «++xsreresrersrrsserenrenes 28 - 0 0 0 - 0 0
Currency swaps:
Receipts yen, payments foreign
CUITENCY -+ssvessmessnsssnsssnssnssnssnsns 1,560 1,560 171) (171) 18 18 ) )
Australian dollar -« ererereneee 1,560 1,560 171) 171) 18 18 ) )
Currency options:
Bought:
PUL evreemremrrermressmeneeseesseesseenneenne 110,876 1,349
[1,674] - 14 (1,659) [20] - 0 (20)
EUIO - -reereernrreneanrenseeseresseenseenne 110,876 1,349
[1,674] - 14 (1,659) [20] - 0 (20)
TOtl +vveerremreerrereeneenreennenns ¥ (16,005) $ (194)

Note: 1. (1) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.
(2) Fair value of currency swaps is calculated by discounting expected cash flows.
(3) An option pricing model is used for fair value calculation of currency options.
2. Figures in [] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheets.
3. Fair value for forward contracts and swaps, and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option for option
transactions, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.

The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited 85



(2) Interest-related transactions
As of March 31, 2011

(A;r':gﬂgtr}al Oyer 1 Year Fair Gains
contract In'cluded value (Losses)
value in (A)
(millions of yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Interest rate futures:
Sold - - ¥24901 ¥ - ¥ (8 ¥ (8
BOUGRNT «ereeeseeesreieisissisineinsisicisinaas 24,901 - 4 4
Over-the-counter transactions:
Yen interest rate swaps:
Receipts fixed, payments floating:---- 1,000 1,000 40 40
Total --eeereeerem ¥ 37

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of interest rate futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.

) (2) Fair value of yen interest rate swaps listed above is present value of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the year.

= 2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.

=

=

(] As of March 31, 2012

> A) Notional A) Notional

— (A) Notiona Over 1 Year ) . (A) Notiona Over 1 Year . .
amount/ ) Fair Gains amount/ : Fair Gains

(7p) included included

m contract in (A value (Losses) contract in (A value (Losses)

D value in (A) value in (A)

|

o (millions of yen) (millions of US$)

=

wn

Exchange-traded transactions:
Interest rate futures:
Bought ««e-eeeeememniniis ¥ 74,748 ¥ - ¥ 3 ¥ 3 $ 909 $ - $0 $0
Over-the-counter transactions:
Yen interest rate swaps:

Receipts fixed, payments floating---- 21,800 17,500 566 566 265 212 6 6
Receipts floating, payments fixed:--- 7,500 7,500 (129) (129) 91 91 (1) (1)
TORAl ++-vereererrrresrerieesree e ¥ 439 $5

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of interest rate futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Fair value of yen interest rate swaps listed above is present value of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the year.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.

(3) Stock-related transactions
As of March 31, 2011

Notional -
. Gains
amount/ Fair value
(Losses)
contract value
(millions of yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
(Yo {lc FE TR TPPOPRRN ¥ 18,078 ¥ (2,328) ¥ (2,328)
BOUGht-«+esereereserreresemnisersenisrsesesnenas 13,798 (184) (184)
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
2,882 (57) (67)
1,960 45 45
PUL «vreerrereemsreesnneessreesseeesreessneennes 79,961
[5,162] 4,700 461)
TOLAI «-veereermeeseeseerenseeerseenseensennes ¥ (2,986)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Figures in [ ] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheets.
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.
4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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As of March 31, 2012

Notional . Notional .
. Gains . Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(Losses) (Losses)
contract value contract value
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
SOl reerrermre e ¥ 10,146 ¥ (411) ¥ 411) $ 123 $(5) $ (5
Bought:-««eseeressrenii 4,100 56 56 49 0 0
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
Sold-- 14,052 97) 97) 170 (1) 1)
Stock index options:
Bought:
PUt o 109,913 1,337
[4,202] 71 (4,130) [51] 0 (50)
o] = ¥ (4,583) $ (55) M
=
Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices. jz>
2. Figures in [ ] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheets. )
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option, are shown in “Gains (losses)”. —
4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above. ':E
(9]
(4) Bond-related transactions =
As of March 31, 2011 _
- o
Notional . =
. Gains
amount/ Fair value wn
(Losses)
contract value
(millions of yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
[SYe e T ¥ 8,899 ¥ (31) ¥ (31)
Bought:-« - reeremeemni 11,932 68 68
Foreign currency-denominated bond
futures:
Sold - 11,745 4 4
Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency-denominated bond
forward contracts:
16,713 (25) (25)
16,701 17 17
Sold:
Calleeerrrreareerirennrreeere e e 7,391
[25] 30 (4)
PUL «vveerereemmreeeareessreeereeesreesaneene 27,173
[34] 3 31
Bought
Calleeerrreemreeriren e 27,173
[28] 24 (4)
PUL «vveerrreesree et e e 87,064
[1,026] 7 (1,019)
TOUAl +eervrremrrermneernnreenrreenreeennes ¥ (963)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of yen bond futures, foreign bond futures and foreign currency-denominated bond forward contracts are based on the closing exchange-
traded prices.
(2) Fair value of bond OTC options is based on the prices quoted from information vendors.
2. Figures in [] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheets.
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.
4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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As of March 31, 2012

Notional . Notional .
amount/ Fair value Gains amount/ Fair value Gains
contract value (Losses) contract value (Losses)
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
SOl e rererrerneenrernrerare e rne e naeas ¥ 11,099 ¥ 23 ¥ 23 $ 135 $0 $ 0
Foreign currency-denominated bond
futures:
SOId rrveerrnrer 21,911 66 66 266 0 0
Over-the-counter transactions:
Bond OTC options:
Sold:
Calls-eermerereererrerresreseesseeseeeseresneas 3,010 36
(3] 4 ©) [0] 0 )
ma PUL +eveermrermrenneemseesseesseesneessessseseeens 20,007 243
jZ> [41] 62 (20) [0] 0 0)
= Bought
% Call-rermrrereererrerreseeseesreeseeeseeenneas 20,007 243
— [21] 8 (12) [0] 0 )
r‘{’_l PUL -+ererereraeesesesesssesssesesesesssesesenens 102,993 1,253
2 [1,192] 5 (1,187) [14] 0 (14)
o ¥(1,131) $(13)
=
n

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of yen bond futures and foreign bond futures is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Fair value of bond OTC options is based on the prices quoted from information vendors.
2. Figures in [] are option premiums which are included in the consolidated balance sheets.
3. Fair value for futures and differences between the option premiums paid/received and fair value of the option, are shown in “Gains (losses)”.
4. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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(5) Others
DFLI utilizes derivative transactions within its money held in trust for trading purposes and foreign securities
(investment trust). Details of the derivative transactions are as follows:

a) Currency-related transactions
As of March 31, 2011

Notional

. Gains
amount/ Fair value
contract value (Losses)
(millions of yen)
Exchange traded transactions:
Currency futures:
SOl e rererrrenneemreenrernre e e sare s ¥ 18,356 ¥ (187) ¥ (187)
(Euro / U.S. dollar) -««e-eeeesmeerinnenes 11,902 (232) (232)
(British pound / U.S. dollar) -+« 6,453 44 44
BOUGht-«+esereereserreesernessseenisersiseseenes 32,603 (268) (268)
(Yen / U.S. dollar) -« seseeeeremranannnnns 32,603 (268) (268)
Over-the-counter transactions: I
Foreign currency forward contracts: jZ>
(ST [ FE TP 133,680 (1,846) (1,846) =
U.S. dollar- 64,030 64 64 cj;;
Euro -«e-eeeeene - 32,684 (1,369) (1,369) —
British pound 9,365 68 68 Crﬁ
Canadian dollar -- . 9,863 (137) (137) (op]
Australian dollar-—-eeeeeeeeeeeeee 9,260 (347) (347) g
Swedish Krona----«sseeeeereemmenicinnnnnnns 614 9) 9 =
DaANISh KIONE-++sssresererrreseseseseserisssans 421 (16) (16) wn
Norwegian Krone ------.-eeseenerennnnns 339 (14) (14)
SWISS franG -=reereeererrrerarrrnrenirraiannnnn, 1,490 (58) (58)
Hong Kong dollar «+««esererenennenns 3,613 4) 4)
Singapore dollar ««-««-seseereeneannnns 1,197 (12) (12)
POlish ZIoty «+-sererremnseiniiniiiiinns 289 ()] 3)
MexXiCan PesO «-«--rrrurrsreresrnenneaans 314 4) 4)
New Zealand dollar ««««+eeesneennns 194 1) 1)
BOUGHt:---eseeeeeseeressessesiseisee s 15,658 32 32
U.S. dOlIar-+e-sreerermrermmemmmesieerieeseenns 7,622 2 2
Euro --eeeeeeeeee . 3,856 25 25
British pound . 930 0) )
Swiss franc - . 271 0 0
Singapore dollar - 131 0) 0)
Australian dollar-- . 1,195 4 4
Canadian dollar -------seeeeesereienenens 1,192 0 0
Hong Kong dollar «=eeereeerrameenreninnnnn. 458 (0) (O)
¥ (2,270)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of currency futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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As of March 31, 2012

Notional . Notional .
amount/ Fair value Gains amount/ Fair value Gains
contract value (Losses) contract value (Losses)
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Exchange traded transactions:
Currency futures:
SOl reerereremree ¥ 15,344 ¥ (238) ¥ (238) $ 186 $ $ @
(Euro / U.S. dollar) «+eeseeesmeesmenneenns 10,679 (139) (139) 129 1) 1)
(British pound / U.S. dollar) -+« 4,664 (99) (99) 56 1) 1)
31,744 (230) (230) 386 ()] ()]
31,744 (230) (230) 386 ) )
Over-the-counter transactions:
Foreign currency forward contracts:
Sold--eeeneeee . 89,219 (5,109) (5,109) 1,085 (62) (62)
U.S. dollar- . 44,413 (2,395) (2,395) 540 (29) (29)
Euro - . 20,955 (1,385) (1,385) 254 (16) (16)
s British pound --- . 6,065 (423) (423) 73 (5) (5)
jZ> Canadian dollar -«-««-sereerseeneennen 6,032 (345) (345) 73 4) (4)
= Australian dollar---««-eeeeeeeninnnnes 5,905 (189) (189) 71 2 )
Q Swedish Krona:-«-----eeseersenssennnns 471 (30) (30) 5 (©)] 0)
,:E Danish Krone:««-«« e 395 (25) (25) 4 (©)] 0)
wn Norwegian Krone «-««-«s-seeeereernnns 346 (25) (25) 4 0) )
L SWISS FTANG wrrvrvrrrrrrerrrranrersesrsarens 901 63) 63) 10 ) ©)
— Hong Kong dollar «-««eeeeemeennnennnns 2,201 (131) (131) 26 1) (1)
% Singapore dollar -«------eeeereeeenennns 803 47) @47) 9 ()] ()]
wn POlISh ZIOty «+-erereeersereserreneucerisenens 235 (19) (19) 2 0) )
Mexican PesO ««+ serrsmrininiininiinns 285 (1 6) (1 6) 3 (0) (0)
New Zealand dollar «+«--erererenenes 204 (10) (10) 2 0) (0)
TOLAl ceeevrereemreereeesnresreesee e reenneas ¥ (5,578) $(67)

Note: 1. (1) Fair value of currency futures listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
(2) Forward exchange rates at the end of the year are used for fair value calculation of foreign currency forward contracts.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.

b) Stock-related transactions
As of March 31, 2011
Notional
amount/ Fair value
contract value

Gains
(Losses)

(millions of yen)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
SO eereeererenee e ¥ 60,783 ¥ 1,418 ¥ 1,418

Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:

[STo T F PSP 53,221 (1,860) (1,860)
TORAl ++ververeerereemerseneenenereeseesenseneneenes ¥ (441)

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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As of March 31, 2012

Notional . Notional .
. Gains . Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(Losses) (Losses)
contract value contract value
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen stock index futures:
SOId reerrernre e ¥ 49,486 ¥ (1,882) ¥ (1,882) $ 602 $ (22) $(22)
Foreign currency-denominated
stock index futures:
[SYe e T 43,483 (307) (307) 529 3) 3)
TORAI ++nvrrrreeeemmrrreeeeanrrreeeeanereeeeanes ¥ (2,189) $ (26)
Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
c) Bond-related transactions
As of March 31, 2011 m
; =
Notional . Gains =
amount/ Fair value (Losses) =
contract value (]
(millions of yen) ':E
Exchange-traded transactions: wn
Yen bond futures: E‘HD
BOUGht wreveeeessereresemsenereesemssseeneeees ¥ 13,963 ¥ @® ¥ (8 g
Foreign currency-denominated =
bond futures: wn
SOOI rsvrrerrrerrirre s 149,557 193 193
TORAI +vnrrrreeeamnnrreeseannnreeesaneeeesennes ¥ 185
Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
As of March 31, 2012
Notional . Notional .
. Gains . Gains
amount/ Fair value amount/ Fair value
(Losses) (Losses)
contract value contract value
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Exchange-traded transactions:
Yen bond futures:
Bought: -« e eeremreeniis ¥ 5,666 ¥ 14 ¥ 14 $ 68 $0 $0
Foreign currency-denominated
bond futures:
[SYe e RPN 113,718 444 444 1,383 5 5
B [0 7= | U ¥ 458 $5

Note: 1. Fair value listed above is based on the closing exchange-traded prices.
2. Fair value is shown in “Gains (losses)”.
3. There were no transactions with maturity of more than one year in the table above.
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Derivative Transactions (Hedge Accounting Applied)
(1) Currency-related transactions

As of March 31, 2011

(A) Notional Over 1 Year

amount/ included in (A) Fair value
contract value

(millions of yen)
Fair value hedge:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds:

SOIG:wevrenrenrererenre e ¥ 3,526,926 ¥ - ¥(118,907)
1,796,391 - 188
1,394,184 - (110,345)
British pound:-««-sereeseesininnnns 177,162 - (2,916)
Canadian dollar-««-««-sessereereenees 42,809 - (788)
Australian dollar --«---eeeeereseeeeennns 93,764 - (3,535)
Swedish Krona:-«-+-reeeeermmenrennnnns 11,745 - (802)
T Danish Krone «-+««+eseereerenrniinnninnnnnn 5,968 - (386)
= 4,899 - (322)
= 3,999 - 99
= 2,519 - 21
m— . 1,432 - 77
rcﬁ British pound «----seeevereeennnnininnnns 48 - 1
C:|) Foreign currency forward contracts, etc, allocated to and/or combined with
o corresponding hedged items:
% Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated term deposits:
[T ) [c I USSP 180,356 - ®
Australian dollar:-««-«-eeseeeseeninnns 140,354 - *)
U.S. dOllar-eseeseemeerensenrensennensenneaneas 40,001 - ®

Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds payable:
Receipts foreign curreny,
payments yen .. 107,562 107,562 )
U.S. dOllar-eseereereerensenrensennensenneanens 107,562 107,562 *

Note: Forward exchange rates at the end of the fiscal year are used for fair value calculation.

(*) Foreign currency forward contracts and currency swaps allocated to and/or combined with corresponding hedged items are recorded as the combined amount
of such foreign currency forward contracts and currency swaps, and their corresponding hedged items (foreign currency-denominated term deposits and bonds
payable). Therefore, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign currency-denominated term deposits and bonds payable.

As of March 31, 2012

(A) Notional  (y v (A) Notional 5, o1 1 Year

amount/ included in (A) Fair value amount/ included in (A) Fair value
contract value contract value

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Fair value hedge:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds:

SOl areeeree ¥ 2,539,107 ¥ - ¥(138,246) $30,893 $ - $(1,682)
U.S. dollar-«-ereeesmmmsienee 1,604,010 - (88,623) 19,515 - (1,078)
671,205 - (37,535) 8,166 - (456)

British pound «---eeeereeenmieniinnns 131,637 - (7,461) 1,601 - (90)
Canadian dollar -«-«-eeeerenininninne 11,649 - (763) 141 - 9)
Australian dollar -« eeereriminnnnns 96,993 - (1,243) 1,180 - 15)
Swedish krona:« -« e 11,191 - (1,207) 136 - (14)
Danish Krone - eseeseerearenruniniinannannns 7,784 - (864) 94 - 10)
Norwegian Krone ----------eoeeeeenenns 4,634 - (546) 56 - (6)
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As of March 31, 2012

(A) Notional Over 1 Year . (A) Notional Over 1 Year .
amount/ . ) Fair value amount/ . } Fair value
included in (A) included in (A)
contract value contract value
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
7,761 - 64 94 - 0
3,134 - 16 38 - 0
3,058 - 58 37 - 0
British pound «+««-seeseemsimmiininininnns 1,568 _ (1 0) 19 _ (0)
Foreign currency forward contracts, etc, allocated to and/or combined with corresponding hedged items:
Foreign currency forward contracts to hedge foreign currency-denominated term deposits:
205,203 - * 2,496 - V]
Australian dollar 135,212 - *) 1,645 - *)
U.S. dOlar--reeermrrrreermammmmreseaminreeesaas 69,990 - *) 851 - *
Currency swaps to hedge foreign currency-denominated bonds payable:
Receipts foreign currency,
PAYMENES YN -+ruvruveurerarininininens 107,562 107,562 *) 1,308 1,308 *) -
U.S. dollar--« e 107,562 107,562 ) 1,308 1,308 *) =
]
Note: Forward exchange rates at the end of the fiscal year are used for fair value calculation. =
(*) Foreign currency forward contracts and currency swaps allocated to and/or combined with corresponding hedged items are recorded as the combined amount (ep]
of such foreign currency forward contracts and currency swaps, and their corresponding hedged items (foreign currency-denominated term deposits and bonds :E
payable). Therefore, their fair value is included in the fair value of such foreign currency-denominated term deposits and bonds payable. —
N
. m
(2) Interest-related transactions 2
As of March 31, 2011 o
; =
(A) Notional Over 1 Year . [72]
amount/ . . Fair value
included in (A)
contract value
(millions of yen)
Deferral hedge
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans
and loans payable:
Receipts fixed, payments floating---- ¥ 5,000 ¥ - ¥ 18
Receipts floating, payments fixed:---- 320,000 320,000 1,926
Special hedge accounting
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans:
Receipts fixed, payments floating---- 104,340 91,340 2,609

Note: Fair value listed above is present value of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the fiscal year.

As of March 31, 2012
(A) Notional

(A) Notional

amount/ Over 1 Year Fair value amount/ Over 1 Year Fair value
included in (A) included in (A)
contract value contract value
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Deferral hedge
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans
and loans payable:
Receipts floating, payments fixed----- ¥ 320,000 ¥ 320,000 ¥ (573) $ 3,893 $3,893 $ (6)
Special hedge accounting
Yen interest rate swaps to hedge loans:
Receipts fixed, payments floating---- 70,200 52,100 1,434 854 633 17

Note: Fair value listed above is present values of expected cash flows, discounted by the interest rates at the end of the fiscal year.

30. Reserve for Employees’ Retirement Benefits
(1) Overview of Employees’ Retirement Benefit Plan of the Group:
As a defined benefit plan for its sales representatives, DL has established and maintained a benefit plan consisting
of retirement lump sum grants and company administered pension.
As a defined benefit plan for its administrative personnel, DL has established and maintained a benefit plan
consisting of defined benefit corporate pension, retirement lump sum grants and defined contribution pension.
Certain consolidated subsidiaries maintain their benefit plan consisting of retirement lump sum grants and
defined benefit corporate pension.
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(2) Funding Status of Employees’ Retirement Benefits of the Group
As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
a. Projected benefit obligations: -« v ¥ (662,024) ¥ (665,149) $ (8,092)
D. PeNnsSion asSets - eeeerrmmrmmmimiiiiiii 204,152 209,541 2,549
Retirement benefit trust included in the above pension assets -+ 98,230 102,682 1,249
c. Unfunded benefit obligations (@ + b) ««+««reeremsmemmeiiis (457,872) (455,607) (5,543)
d. Unrecognized actuarial differences -««« -« eeeeeemiii: 37,782 21,803 265
e. Unrecognized gains (losses) on plan amendments - 22 12 0
f. Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits (C + d + €)««-xxrerreeens ¥ (420,067) ¥ (433,791) $ (5,277)

Note: Certain of its consolidated subsidiaries applied simplified methods in calculating their projected benefit obligations.

(3) Retirement Benefit Expenses
Years ended March 31,

s 2011 2012 2012

jZ> (millions of yen) (millions of US$)
CZD a. Service cost (Note) - ¥ 26,272 ¥ 26,053 $316

= b. Interest cost 11,185 11,257 136

; c. Estimated investment inCome «+-+«++vevrerminiiin (1,798) (1,789) (21)

g d. Amortization of unrecognized actuarial differences «--«+--«-eeeeeenees 13,119 13,356 162

= e. Amortization of unrecognized gains (losses) on plan

% amendments....................g. .......... g ........ ( .......... ) ...... p ......................... ( 5’368) 9 0

wn f. Retirement benefit expenses (@ + b + C + d + €) +orrrrrrinicnniinnnns ¥ 43,410 ¥ 48,888 $ 594

Note: Retirement benefit expenses of DL’s consolidated subsidiaries which apply simplified methods are included in the item “Service cost”.

(4) Assumptions
Years ended March 31,

2011 2012
Method of periodic allocation of benefit obligations -««-:«--eeeeeeeieeene straight-line method straight-line method
Discount rate 1.7 0r 1.8% 1.7 0r1.8%
Estimated return on investment
a. Defined benefit corporate Pension «-:-- s 1.00r1.7% 1.00r 1.7%
b. Retirement benefit trust 0.0% 0.0%
Amortization period for actuarial differences -« - vemereniininiinnninn. 3 or7 years 3 or7 years
(Starting from the following (Starting from the following
fiscal year under the fiscal year under the
straight-line method) straight-line method)
Amortization period for gains (losses) on plan amendments.«---------- 3 or7 years 3 years
(Amortized under the (Amortized under the
straight-line method) straight-line method)

31. Stock Options
(1) The account used to record expenses associated with issuing stock options and the amount expensed
Operating expenses for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012: ¥150 million (US$1 million)
(2) Details of the stock options granted for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012
a) Details of the stock options

1st Series of Stock Acquisition Rights

Granted persons 10 directors (except outside directors) and 16 executive officers of DL

Class and total number® | 1,698 shares of common stock

Granted date August 16, 2011

Vesting conditions The acquisition rights are vested on the above granted date.

Service period covered N/A

Exercise period From August 17, 2011 to August 16, 2041
A granted person may exercise stock options only within 10 days of the day following the
date on which she/he loses the status as both a director and an executive officer of DL.

() The total number of stock options is translated to the number of common stocks for better understanding.
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b) Figures relating to the stock options
The following table covers stock options which existed for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 and the total
number of stock options is translated to the number of common stocks.
i) Number of the stock options (shares)

1st Series of Stock Acquisition Rights

Before vesting

Outstanding at the end of prior fiscal year -

Granted 1,698
Forfeited -
Vested 1,698

Outstanding at the end of the fiscal year -

After vesting

Outstanding at the end of prior fiscal year -

Vested 1,698
Exercised -
Forfeited -
Outstanding at the end of the fiscal year 1,698

ii) Price information

1st Series of Stock Acquisition Rights

SNOILJ3S VIONVNIH

Exercise price ¥1 per stock option

Average stock price at the time of exercise -
Fair value at the granted date ¥88,521 ($1,077.02)

(3) Valuation method used for estimating fair value of stock options
Stock options granted for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 were valued as follows:
a) Valuation method
Black-Scholes Model

b) Assumptions
1st Series of Stock Acquisition Rights
Expected volatility " 38.966%
Expected durations (? 3 years
Expected dividends ¥1,600 ($19.46)
Risk-free interest rate (4 0.208%

(*1) Computed based on the closing prices of common stock in each trading day from April 1, 2010 to August 15, 2011.
(*2) Computed based on the average service period from the granted date to expected exercise date.

(*3) Computed based on the expected dividend for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.

(*4) Based on yields of Japanese government bonds for a term corresponding to the expected durations.

(4) Method to estimate the number of stock options vested

Only the actual number of forfeited stock options is considered, because it is difficult to rationally estimate the
number of stock options to be forfeited in the future.
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32. Deferred Tax Accounting
(1) Major components of deferred tax assets and liabilities as of March 31, 2011 and 2012

As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Deferred tax assets:

Policy reserves and Others e e ¥ 391,041 ¥ 337,527 $ 4,106
Reserve for employees’ retirement benefits - 182,712 162,237 1,973
Losses on valuation of SeCUrities -« xxrverrmrimniiniie 62,786 27,091 329
Reserve for price fluctuations -« «-eeemsmnmnii 29,079 23,258 282
TaxX [0SSES CAITIEd FOrWAIT «««-eersereereereerrererierierersemsesresnessseseeseesennes 10,369 14,536 176
OBNIEIS:+e++eseererneeneeneeeasessassessessessessessessessesseese e st eneeneene et et e e e eeneennan 43,262 37,197 452
Subtotal - ¥ 719,251 ¥ 601,849 $ 7,322
Valuation allOWaNGCES -+« s rerrrrreremrairuitiririrra s eaas (60’21 3) (60’007) (730)
TORAI e-+eereereereereerserseruermeruenseeseensenseasenseaseaseaseaseasessesneeneeneeneeneensennas ¥ 659,037 Y 541,842 $ 6,592

g Deferred tax liabilities:
> Net unrealized gains on securities, net of tax -+ e (148,251) (222,978) (2,712)
CZ) Other intangible fixed assets:«« -« xrrerrermimninis - (12,882) (156)
IE Reserve for tax basis adjustments of real estate «-««-oreereeiennnns (10,138) (8,561) (104)
o Dividend receivables from StOCKS «+ -+ trrrrrrrmminiiniiiis (7,675) (6,594) (80)
=D (16,563) (15,981) (194)
%' - ¥(182,629) ¥ (266,998) $ (3,248)
% Net deferred tax asSSEets < rererrerrrraririiiiii e, ¥ 476,407 ¥ 274,843 $ 3,343

(2) The principal reasons for the difference between the statutory tax rate and actual effective tax rate after
considering deferred taxes are as follows:

As of March 31,

2011 2012
STAtULOrY 1aX FAtE «exrerrerrerre e 36.08% 36.09%
(Adjustments)
Decrease in deferred tax assets in relation to tax rate change «-«++-«eerereesieeninniiiens - 50.12%
(OLIEIS +++++exeereererreereerueruerueaneaneansansansansansaasaseaseaseasesseasesseaseaseeneeneeneensansansansansansansaasessasnean 2.81% 2.259,
Actual effective tax rate after considering deferred taxes -« e 38.89% 88.46%

(3) Adjustment of deferred tax assets and liabilities due to changes in effective statutory tax rate

Following the promulgation of the “Act on Partial Revision of the Income Tax Act, etc. for the Purpose of Creating
a Taxation System Responding to Changes in Economic and Social Structures” (Act No. 114 of 2011) and the
“Act on Special Measures for Securing Financial Resources Necessary to Implement Measures for Reconstruction
Following the Great East Japan Earthquake” (Act No. 117 of 2011), DL changed its effective statutory tax rate for
calculating its deferred tax assets and liabilities from 36.09% to 33.22% during the three fiscal years starting from
April 1, 2012 and 30.67% effective the fiscal year starting from April 1, 2015 and thereafter.

As a result, its deferred tax assets as of March 31, 2012 decreased by ¥38,124 million (US$463 million) and
corporate income taxes-deferred for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 increased by ¥75,616 million (US$920
million), both compared to those calculated with the previous effective statutory tax rate (36.09%).

33.Consolidation as a Result of Acquisition of Tower
(1) Overview of business combination

a) Name and business of the acquired company
e Company name: Tower Australia Group Limited (currently TAL Limited (“TAL"))
® Business: Insurance and insurance-related business
(*1) TAL was established as a holding company, subsidiaries of which operate insurance and insurance-related businesses.

b) Purpose of the acquisition
Making TAL a wholly owned subsidiary, DL aims to (a) strengthen its operating base significantly in Australia,
and (b) promote geographical diversification of its earnings, etc.

c) Date of business combination
May 11, 2011
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d) Legal form of business combination
Purchase of shares of Tower in cash

(*2) DL acquired TAL (Tower at the point of the acquisition) by utilizing a friendly acquisition scheme called a “Scheme of Arrangement”, in which the
transaction became effective when (a) 75% or more voting rights and the majority of TAL's shareholders who attended the meeting of shareholders
(including proxies) approved the transaction and (b) DL completed the transaction by paying AUD 4.00 per share for Tower’s shareholders with
Australian court approval.

e) Name of acquired company after combination
Tower Australia Group Limited (currently TAL Limited)
f) DL’s percentage of share holdings after completion of the transaction

e Share of existing voting rights before the date of business combination: 28.96%
¢ Share of additional voting rights acquired on the date of business combination: 71.04%
e Share of voting rights after completion of the transaction: 100%

g) Controlling company
Consolidated subsidiaries of DL hold more than 50% stake in TAL and, therefore, DL controls the decision-
making body of TAL.
(2) Accounting period for which earnings of the acquired company were included in the consolidated statements of
earnings
From April 1, 2011 to March 31, 2012

(4) Difference between revalued acquisition price and the sum of actual costs associated with step acquisitions
The difference between (i) the revalued acquisition price of Tower (100%) at the date of transaction and (i) the sum
of the actual costs associated with step acquisitions (28.96% before the transaction and 71.04% at the date of
transaction) was ¥23,116 million (US$281 million).
(5) Goodwill
a) Amount of goodwiill
AUD 786 million
b) Reason to recognize goodwill
The acquisition price exceeded the net amount of Tower’s assets and liabilities identified by DL at the
completion date of the transaction.
c) Amortization method and amortization period
Goodwill associated with the acquisition is amortized over a period of 20 years under the straight-line method.
(6) The amounts of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of business combination

-
(3) Acquisition cost and breakdown =
(millions of yen) (millions of US$) jZ>

Acquisition price (costs associated with purchase of share of Tower in cash) ««----- ¥ 104,860 $1,275 cj—:
Other direct costs (fees to outside advisors, eC.) -« e 818 9 —
Total aCqUISIEION COSt«++rrsrrsrrrreiiiiiti ¥ 105,678 $1,285 cr/|'>|
(ep]

=

o

=

n

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
B 10 72 T2 1oy = o S ¥ 438,644 $ 5,336
Securities included in the above “Total assets” 237,125 2,885
TOUTA] [IQDIIItI@S+++++++++e+ereereereerseruerseraeruererneessensassaasassassessessessessessessessessessessssnssnsansensensensansens ¥ 286,407 $ 3,484
Policy reserves and others included in the above “Total liabilities” 209,671 2,551

34. Asset Retirement Obligations

(1) Overview of Asset Retirement Obligations
DL recognized statutory or similar obligations associated with some of its real estate for rent and business use
with regard to the removal of (1) tangible fixed assets and (2) certain harmful substances in the tangible fixed
assets and so recorded the asset retirement obligation.

(2) Calculation Method of Asset Retirement Obligations
DL calculated the asset retirement obligation by (1) estimating the period of service of each building between 0
and 37 years based on its contract term and useful life and (2) applying discount rates ranging from 0.144% to

The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited 97



2.294% for the year ended March 31, 2012 (0.144% to 2.293% for the year ended March 31, 2011).
(3) Increase and Decrease in Asset Retirement Obligations
The following table shows the increase and decrease in asset retirement obligations:

Years ended March 31,

2011 2012 2012

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
BeginNing DalanCe O ««eeeeeseesesesnisnesneansisissiinisnetssesssses s ¥ 3,247 ¥ 4,019 $48
TiMe Progress adjUSIMENTS « - wwsesrerrerereeseessessissineeesses s 43 46 0
ORGIS everevreemeeserressesseeessssssmeseseseesssssssesssssssesessessesseesssssssssseeseesssseeseees 728 (514) ©)
Ending balance ¥ 4,019 ¥ 3,551 $43

Note: (*) The “Beginning balance” of the year ended March 31, 2011 in the above table represents the amount of asset retirement obligations as of April 1, 2010
(instead of March 31, 2010) in accordance with “Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations” (ASBJ Statement No.18 issued on March 31,
2008) and “Guidance on Accounting Standard for Asset Retirement Obligations” (ASBJ Guidance No.21 issued on March 31, 2008).

35. Real Estate for Rent
DL owns a number of commercial buildings, including land, for rent in various locations including Tokyo. Net rental

g income from such real estate for rent for the year ended March 31, 2011 and 2012 was ¥31,006 million and ¥26,757
= million (US$325 million), respectively. The rental income was included in investment income and the rental expense
CZ) was included in investment expenses. DL recorded extraordinary loss of ¥3,296 million for impairment loss on rental
'E real estate for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011 and that of ¥7,945 million (US$96 million) for the fiscal year ended
w March 31, 2012.
g The carrying amount, net change during the year and the market value of such rental real estate were as follows:
%‘ Years ended March 31,
= 2011 2012 2012
o (millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Carrying amount
Beginning balance «++ -+« reeeremmiiii e ¥ 812,246 ¥ 844,127 $10,270
Net change during year - 31,881 (3,416) (41)
Ending balance s 844,127 840,711 10,228
Market value «s«serecreraiiiiiiniiiiiiiiiinicnes e ¥ 862,520 ¥ 81 97920 $ 9,975

Note: 1. The carrying amount of rental real estate on the consolidated balance sheets was acquisition costs net of accumulated depreciation and impairments.

2. Net change in carrying amount includes cost of acquisition of the real estate for ¥45,401 million and the depreciation expense of ¥15,197 million during the
year ended March 31, 2011 and cost of acquisition of the real estate for ¥14,644 million (US$178 million) and the depreciation expense of ¥15,069 million
(US$183 million) during the year ended March 31, 2012.

3. DL calculates the market value of the majority of the rental real estate based on real estate appraisal standards by an independent appraiser, and others
based on the internal but reasonable estimates.

36. Segment Information and Others
(1) Segment Information
For the years ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012
Overview of the reported segments
The overview of the reported segment has been omitted as DL on a consolidated basis did not operate any
businesses categorized in segments other than its own core life insurance business.
(2) Other Related Information
For the years ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012
(i) Product (Service) Segment Information
The product (service) segment information has been omitted as the Group’s operations consist of only one
product (service) segment.
(i) Geographic Segment Information
The geographic segment information has been omitted as more than 90% of the Group’s ordinary revenues and
tangible fixed assets derive from its business unit in Japan.
(iii) Major Customer Information
The major customer information has been omitted as no single customer accounts for 10% or more of the
Group’s ordinary revenues.
(3) Impairment Losses on Fixed Assets by Reported Segment
For the years ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012
The information on impairment losses on fixed assets by reported segment has been omitted as the Group’s
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operations consist of only one segment.
(4) Amortization of Goodwill and Unamortized Amount of Goodwill by Reported Segment
For the year ended March 31, 2011
Not applicable
For the year ended March 31, 2012
The information on the amortization of goodwill and unamortized amount of goodwill by reported segment has
been omitted as the Group’s operations consist of only one segment.
(5) Gain on Negative Goodwill by Reported Segment
For the years ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012
Not applicable
(6) Related Party Transactions
For the years ended March 31, 2011 and March 31, 2012
There are no significant transactions to be disclosed.

37.Specified Purpose Companies

(1) Securitization of Subordinated Obligations
DL securitized subordinated obligations to broaden the range of investors and to secure a stable base for
raising capital. For the securitization, DL utilized Tokutei Mokuteki Kaisha (TMKs, specified purpose companies)
regulated by the Asset Liquidation Act. TMKs raise capital by issuing specified company bonds backed by
assets transferred to the TMKs by contributors of subordinated loans. DL holds non-voting shares in Cayman-
based special purpose companies, which in turn hold specified shares in TMKs. DL monitors the TMKSs’ financial
situation and appropriately recognizes those non-voting shares in accordance with the “Accounting Standard for
Financial Instruments” issued on March 10, 2008.
The information of the TMK with which DL has transactions is as follows. DL held no ordinary shares in such
TMK and the TMK had neither directors, officers, nor employees transferred from DL.
As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
NUMDEr Of TMIS «eereerermummitiiiiiiirn s e one entity one entity one entity
Total assets at the end of latest fiscal year: . --cvoevenieiniiiiniiinninn, ¥ 30,358 ¥ 30,359 $ 369
Total liabilities at the end of latest fiscal year -+« vemeeriiiiiniiiiinnn. 30,087 30,087 366

Note:

For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011, two TMKs which had been engaged in DL’s foundation funds were not included in the above table, as those TMKs
completed their liquidation in September 2010. As per the resolution made at the 108th general meeting of representative policyholders with regard to its plan
for demutualization, DL implemented one-time pre-maturity redemption of its foundation funds prior to the organizational conversion (demutualization).

The amounts involved in the principal transactions between DL and the TMK were as follows:
As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Subordinated obligation -« - s ¥ 30,000 ¥ 30,000 $ 365

Years ended March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Interest EXPENISES e+ +srtrrsrrasan ettt ¥ 618 ¥ 619 $ 7

(2) Investment in Securitized Real Estate
To diversify investments in real estate and stabilize its investment returns, DL had an exposure to an investment
project to securitize real estate by investing in the SPCs under an anonymous association contract based on the
Commercial Code.

The investment in the anonymous association contract was accounted for based on the SPCs’ financial
conditions and the fair value of real estate owned by the SPCs in accordance with the “Accounting Standards
for Financial Instruments” issued on March 10, 2008. DL anticipates no obligation in the future to cover possible
losses of the SPCs. Even if the fair value of the real estates declines, the loss of DL is limited to the amount of
investment in the anonymous association contract.

The information of the SPCs with which DL has transactions is as follows. As of March 31, 2011 and 2012, DL
had no management authority in the SPCs and the SPCs had no directors, officers, and employees transferred
from DL.
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As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
NUMDEr Of SPCS xteetsetessttiniiiiii e three entities three entities three entities
Total assets at the end of latest fiscal year: - ---r-veeeeiiiinniinnnnns ¥ 139,312 ¥ 139,037 $1,691
Total liabilities at the end of latest fiscal year -+« eveeeeeiiiniiiinnnns 93,308 94,520 1,150

The amounts involved in transactions between DL and the SPCs were as follows:
As of March 31,

2011 2012 2012

(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Investment in @anonymous assoCiation «-««-««xsereerreniiniiniincis ¥ 29,381 ¥ 28,237 $343
Preferred iINVeStMENTS - o rerrrrerrmiriinii e 2,900 2’900 35

Years ended March 31,

-n 2011 2012 2012

= (millions of yen) (millions of US$)

jZ> Dividends from investment in anonymous association -«««-««----xeeeees ¥ 2,162 ¥ 2,044 $24

2] Dividends from preferred investments e, 179 147 1

=

L 38. Per Share Information

C:|) Years ended March 31,

% 2011 2012 2012

wn (yen) (US$)
Net assets per SRAME - rerrerrrerrr ¥ 73,027.99 ¥ 99,37682 $ 1,20911
Net income per SHAME o rerrrrrrrr 1,917.40 2’061 .78 25.08
Diluted net income per share:« -« e - 2,061.55 25.08

Note:

1. Information on diluted net income per share for the year ended March 31, 2011 was omitted as there were no
potential diluting shares of DL.

2. Underlying basis for the calculation of the net income per share and the diluted net income per share was as
follows:

Years ended March 31,
2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)

Net income per share
Net INCOME serseerettertianiariiieitiiniiiicitiitientarsiiiiiitsseereaens ¥ 19‘139 ¥ 20’357 $ 247

Net income attributable to other than shareholders of
COMMON STOCK s++rrrerrartarnnrri i aa s - - -

Net income attributable to shareholders of common stock------+--+ ¥ 19,139 ¥ 20,357 $ 247
Average number of common stock outstanding 9,981 thousand 9,873 thousand 9,873 thousand
shares shares shares

Diluted net income per share
Adjustments tO NEt INCOME: v rerrriii - - -

Increase in the number of common Stock -+« +sverreiiiiiniiiniinns - 1 thousand 1 thousand

shares shares
[Increase in the number of common stock attributable to _ [1 thousand [1 thousand
subscription rights to Shares] «-«-«--+-eesersernmii shares] shares]

Note: (*) “Average number of common stock outstanding” in the above table excludes shares held by Stock Granting Trust (J-ESOP) or Trust-type Employee
Shareholding Incentive Plan (E-Ship®).
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3. Underlying basis for the calculation of the net assets per share was as follows:
As of March 31,

Note:

39.

2011 2012 2012
(millions of yen) (millions of US$)
Net assets ¥ 731,835 ¥ 991,745 $ 12,066
Adjustments ....................................................................................... 11,737 9,242 112
Subscription rights to shares:«««« e - 150 1
Minority INtErests ««r  verrrrrmriii 11,737 9,091 110
Net assets attributable to common Stock «««««seeeremmimmiiiiiiiiiiiiiin, ¥ 720,097 ¥ 982,503 $11,954
Number of common stock outstanding O «-««-eeeeesemnnninnnnins 9,860 thousand 9,886 thousand 9,886 thousand
shares shares shares

(*) “Number of common stock outstanding” in the above table excludes shares held by the J-ESOP or the E-Ship®.

Other Comprehensive Income

The amount reclassified and tax effect amounts related to other comprehensive income for the year ended March 31,

2012 were as follows:

(millions of yen)

(millions of US$)

Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax

Amount incurred during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 - ¥ 289,877 $ 3,526
AmMount reclassified -« rrerrararii 34,331 417
Before tax adjustment ........................................................................... 324,209 3’944
Tax effect (79,299) (964)
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax: -« eeveeiiiennnns 244,910 2,979
Deferred hedge gains (losses)
Amount incurred during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 «+++eeeeeeeee (2,817) (34)
AMNOUNT FECIASSITIEM +-+++reerreersrerseerrerrrersserrsraseesseesseesseesseessesssesssessseesseensesnes (75) ()
Amount adjusted for asset acquisition COSt «««++-rerrrremmriniis 901 10
Before tax adjustment -« eeereremmm (1,991) (24)
TAX ©Ff@CT «++erveerreerueerseerseerueerseanseaasertesseeseeaeesseesaeesseenseensestesaseenseennennns 704 8
Deferred hedge gains (I0SSES) «x«+xxrssrrssrrssrrssnrisnntantiniiiiiiiiis (1,287) (15)
Reserve for land revaluation
Amount incurred during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 ««+-eeeeeeeeeee - -
Amount reclassified - -
Before tax adjUSMENT -« - e eserreerrerisssiiniisinii st - -
TaX ©ffECT «+vrrrrrrerrnmmirir 16,861 205
Reserve for land revaluation -+ -reererrmmimmimiin 16,861 205
Foreign currency translation adjustments
Amount incurred during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 ««+veveeeeene (4,207) (51)
AmMount reclassified -« wrarrarrarmri - -
Before tax adjustment ........................................................................... (4,207) (5 )
TAX ©FfECT «+vverreerreeereerseereereesseenseanserssesasesaeeeneesseesaeesseesseessesssesssesnsesnsesnen _ _
Foreign currency translation adjustments (4,207) (51)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and affiliates
accounted for under the equity method
Amount incurred during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 --+-eeeeeves 300 3
Amount reclassified (905) (11)
Share of other comprehensive income of subsidiaries and affiliates
accounted for under the equity method «--«---ovveriiniiii, (604) (7)
Total other COMPrenensive INCOME ««+«-+-xwseesessmsemissistsssisissiiiisas ¥ 255,673 $3,110
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40. Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets
(1) For the Year Ended March 31, 2011
a) Type and Number of Shares Outstanding

Year Ended March 31, 2011

At the beginning Increase during Decrease during At the end
of the year the year the year of the year
(thousands of shares)
COMMON StOCK +rerremrrrmrmmmnmiiiiiiiiine s 10,000 - - 10,000
Treasury StOCK (e - 139 - 139

Note: (*) 139 thousand shares of increase in treasury stock represents the sum of (1) shares purchased by the J-ESOP under DL’s incentive program granting middle
management the purchased shares and (2) shares purchased by the Trust Fund for Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership under the
E-Ship®.

b) Dividends on Common Stocks
i) Dividends paid during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2011

Date of resolution June 28, 2010 (at the First Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders)
. Type of shares Common stocks
jZ> Total dividends ¥10,000 million
= Dividends per share ¥1,000
g Record date 0 April 16, 2010
— Effective date June 29, 2010
rU|3| Dividend resource Retained earnings
C:|) Note: (*) The record date was set on April 16, 2010 in accordance with Article 2, Supplementary Provisions of DL’s Articles of Incorporation.
o
% i) Dividends, the record date of which was March 31, 2011, to be paid out in the fiscal year ending March 31, 2012
Date of resolution June 27, 2011 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)
Type of shares Common stocks
Total dividends ©) ¥15,776 million (US$191 million)
Dividends per share ¥1,600 (US$19.46)
Record date March 31, 2011
Effective date June 28, 2011
Dividend resource Retained earnings

Note: (*) Total dividends did not include ¥223 million (US$2 million) of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the
shares held by those trusts as treasury shares.

c) Amount of Net Assets
DL reorganized from a mutual life insurance company to a joint stock life insurance corporation as of April 1,
2010, in accordance with Article 85 of the Insurance Business Act.
Based on its plan for demutualization in accordance with Article 86 of the Insurance Business Act, DL realigned
its net assets in the non-consolidated balance sheet. On a consolidated basis, net assets of DL can be summarized

as follows:
(millions of yen)
As of March 31, 2010 As of April 1, 2010

Accumulated redeemed foundation funds -««--«-«--+---- ¥ 420,000 Capital StOCK «+xrarersererssensesinie e ¥ 210,200
Revaluation reServe -+ - eererrerriinriiniiin e 248 Capita| surp|u5 ........................................................... 210,200
Consolidated surplus 138,469 Retained earnings -+ 138,318
Total of foundation funds and SUrplus:««-««--seseeeseanees 558,718 Shareholders’ equity:« -« eerrermmmim 558,718
Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax:- 462,289 Net unrealized gains (losses) on securities, net of tax-- 462,289
Deferred hedge gains (I0SSES) «++-«x+srererrrrrrisesnninnnnans (2,008) Deferred hedge gains (I0SSES) -«++«rssrersrrrrrrssnsnsnininnnns (2,008)
Reserve for land revaluation -« eemeemminininnnns (63,540) Reserve for land revaluation -« e (63,540)
Foreign currency translation adjustments «-««--eooeeeee (8,069) Foreign currency translation adjustments ««--«+-«eeseeenee (3,069)
Total of valuation and translation adjustments--------- 393,671 Total of valuation and translation adjustments--------- 393,671
MINOKitY INTEIESES -+rsreerersesrsrsririssrireieisesiisnississrens 11,804  MINOKity INTEIESES --rereererrererreeissiseriniississiseissenes 11,804
TOaAl NET ASSELS -+veervereerrereereersersemereensersesseseseessesees ¥ 964,193  TOtal NEt ASSELS «+ereserrerrsesrermsessmssiessisssisisisieisesiesens ¥ 964,193
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(2) For the Year Ended March 31, 2012
a) Type and Number of Shares Outstanding

Year Ended March 31, 2012

At the beginning Increase during Decrease during At the end
of the year the year the year of the year
(thousands of shares)
COMMON STOCK -++svererererssmrsiniis 10,000 - - 10,000
Treasury StoCK (eeeerrerinininiiiii 139 - 26 113

Note: (*) 26 thousand shares of decrease in treasury stock represents the sum of (1) shares granted to eligible employees at retirement by the J-ESOP under
DL’s incentive program granting middle management the purchased shares and (2) shares sold to the Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding
Partnership by the Trust Fund for Dai-ichi Life Insurance Employee Stock Holding Partnership under the E-Ship®.

b) Stock Acquisition Rights

. Balance as of March 31, 2012
Issuer Details -
(millions of yen)
DL Stock acquisition rights in the form of stock options ¥150 (US$1 million)

I

c) Dividends on Common Stocks jZ>

i) Dividends paid during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012 CZ)

Date of resolution June 27, 2011 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders) 'E

Type of shares Common stocks )

Total dividends © ¥15,776 million (US$191 million) cr%

Dividends per share ¥1,600 (US$19.46) =

Record date March 31, 2011 2

Effective date June 28, 2011 w
Dividend resource Retained earnings

Note: (*) Total dividends did not include ¥223 million (US$2 million) of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the
shares held by those trusts as treasury shares.

i) Dividends, the record date of which was March 31, 2012, to be paid out in the year ending March 31, 2013

Date of resolution June 25, 2012 (at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)
Type of shares Common stocks

Total dividends ©) ¥15,818 million (US$192 million)

Dividends per share ¥1,600 (US$19.46)

Record date March 31, 2012

Effective date June 26, 2012

Dividend resource Retained earnings

Note: (*) Total dividends did not include ¥181 million (US$2 million) of dividends to the J-ESOP trust and the E-ship trust, as DL recognized the
shares held by those trusts as treasury shares.
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41. Quarterly Information

Three months Six months Nine months Year ended
ended June 30, ended September | ended December March 31, 2012
2011 30, 2011 31,2011
Ordinary revenues (millions of yen) ¥1,135,672 ¥2,469,759 ¥3,596,875 ¥4,931,781
In.com.e (!oss) before mcor.nfa taxes and 45,002 19,149 130,571 151,048
minority interests (millions of yen)
Net income (loss) (millions of yen) 32,275 12,361 12,709 20,357
Net income (loss) per share (yen) ¥3,272.22 ¥1,252.85 ¥1,287.70 ¥2,061.78
Three months Three months Three months Three months
ended June 30, ended September | ended December ended March 31,
2011 30, 2011 31, 2011 2012
Net income (loss) per share (yen) ¥3,272.22 ¥(2,017.43) ¥35.24 ¥773.69
Three months Six months Nine months Year ended
ended June 30, ended September | ended December March 31, 2012
2011 30, 2011 31, 2011
Ordinary revenues  (millions of US$) $13,817 $30,049 $43,762 $60,004
Income (loss) before income taxes and
547 232 1,588 1,837
minority interests (millions of US$)
Net income (loss) (millions of US$) 392 150 154 247
Net income (loss) per share (US$) $39.81 $15.24 $15.66 $25.08
Three months Three months Three months Three months
ended June 30, ended September | ended December ended March 31,
2011 30, 2011 31,2011 2012
Net income (loss) per share (US$) $39.81 $(24.54) $0.42 $9.41

42. Subsequent Events

None
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» Report of Independent Auditors

2-2-3 Lichitaiwai-cho
Chiyadadu, Tokyo, lapan 100-3011
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Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited

Wi have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company,

Limited and its consolidated subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2012,
and the consolidated statements of camings, mpre{l]:miw income, cl in net assets, and cash Nows for
the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies other explanatory information, all
expressed in Japanese yen.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, and for designing and operating such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statemenis that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditars Responsibiliny

Owr responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial stalements based on our audil, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepied in Japan. Those

require that we plan and perform the audit 1o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to oblain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated fnancial statements, whether due 1o fraud
of error. The purpose of an audit of the consolidated financial statements is not to express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control, but in making these risk assessments the auditor considers internal
controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial starements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
managernent, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respecls,
the consolidated financial position of The Dai-ichi Life Insurance Company, Limited and its consolidated
subsidiaries as at March 31, 2012, and their consolidated financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepled in Japan,
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Comvenience Translation
We have reviewed the translation of these consolidated financial statements into U.5. dollars, presented for the

convenience of readers, and, in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
properly translated on the basis described in Mote 1.

émutfm Shinlihon Lrc

June 25, 2012

B merbs T of Ersat & Yoy
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